

G. J. NIHART C. P. SMITH



UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION, LINDE DIVISION

OCTOBER 1964



BIOMEDICAL LABORATORY AEROSPACE MEDICAL RESEARCH LABORATORIES AEROSPACE MEDICAL DIVISION AIR FORCE SYSTEMS COMMAND WRIGHT-PATTERSON AIR FORCE BASE, OHIO When US Government drawings, specifications, or other data are used for any purpose other than a definitely related government procurement operation, the government thereby incurs no responsibility nor any obligation whatsoever; and the fact that the government may have formulated, furnished, or in any way supplied the said drawings, specifications, or other data is not to be regarded by implication or otherwise, as in any manner licensing the holder or any other person or corporation, or conveying any rights or permission to manufacture, use, or sell any patented invention that may in any way be related thereto.

Qualified requesters may obtain copies from the Defense Documentation Center (DDC), Cameron Station, Alexandria, Virginia 22314. Orders will be expedited if placed through the librarian or other person designated to request documents from DDC (formerly ASTIA).

Do not return this copy. Retain or destroy.

Stock quantities available at Office of Technical Services, Department of Commerce, Washington, D. C. 20230.

Change of Address

Organizations receiving reports via the 6570th Aerospace Medical Research Laboratories automatic mailing lists should submit the addressograph plate stamp on the report envelope or refer to the code number when corresponding about change of address.

700 - November 1964 - 448-12-322

COMPATIBILITY OF MATERIALS WITH 7500 PSI OXYGEN

Ŧ

.

G. J. NIHART C. P. SMITH

FOREWORD

This investigation was initiated by the Biomedical Laboratory of the Aerospace Medical Research Laboratories, Aerospace Medical Division, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio. The research was conducted by Union Carbide Corporation, Linde Division, Cryogenic Development Laboratory, Tonawar 'a, New York under Contract No. AF33(657)-11686. Mr. C. P. Smith, Section Engineer, and Mr. G. J. Nihart, Staff Chemist, were the principal investigators for Union Carbide Corporation. Contract monitor for the Aerospace Medical Research Laboratories was Mr. Irving H. Lantz. The work was performed in support of Project No. 6373, "Equipment for Life Support in Aerospace," and Task No. 637302, "Respiratory Support Equipment." The work sponsored by this contract was started in June 1963 and was completed in June 1964.

The authors acknowledge the invaluable assistance of Mr. R. M. Thayer, Mr. C. M. Heath, Mr. C. F. Gottzmann, Mr. E. S. Kordyban, and Mr. J. Notaro of Union Carbide Corporation, Linde Division.

This technical report has been reviewed and is approved.

WAYNE H. McCANDLESS Technical Director Biomedical Laboratory

11

ABSTRACT

A research program was conducted to develop ignition data on thread lubricants, thread sealants, fluorocarbon plastics, and metals. Spontaneous ignition temperatures were determined in both 2000 psi and 7500 psi oxygen for all the above materials except metals. The spontaneous ignition temperatures for these materials were found to be essentially the same in 7500 psi oxygen and in 2000 psi oxygen. Only three of the tested lubricants are recommended for possible use in 7500 psi systems. None of the thread sealants are recommended. Glass-filled polytetrafluoroethylene is usable only if tightly confined. The relative ease of ignition of metals and alloys was determined by promoted ignition methods in oxygen at 7500 psi. Inconel alloy 600, brass, Monel alloy 400, and nickel were found to have the highest resistance to ignition and combustion among the common alloys and metals. Of the materials tested, stainless steel and aluminum are the least satisfactory for use at oxygen pressures of 7500 psi. A test system was constructed to evaluate the hazards in rapidly charging a 65 cubic inch nickel-lined vessel with high pressure oxygen. A series of rapid charging tests up to as high as 8000 psi proceeded without incident. Electrostatic charges measured during the charging were negligible.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

e.

INTRODUCTION	1
PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT	1
Selection of Test Mathode	1
Oragon Bonk Test	1
Transfer Doublest	2
	2
	2
Hot Wire Test.	2
Promoted Ignition Test	3
Adiabatic Compression Test	3
Selection of Materials for Test	3
Thread Lubricants and Thread Sealants	3
Fluorocarbon Plastics and Elastomers	5
Metals and Alloys	6
Design of Equipment	8
High Pressure Oxygen Warm Converter	11
High Pressure Oxygen Bomb.	11
Values Fittings and Tubing	11
Similated System	11
	1 1
EXPERIMENTAL PROGRAM	14
High Pressure Laboratory	14
Construction of Laboratory	14
Physical Arrangement of Test Equipment	14
Clearing and Accepting of Fundament	14
Utah Deserves Orean Dark Tests	14
High Pressure Oxygen Bomb lests	14
Purpose.	14
Procedure	17
Preliminary Tests of Prototype Bomb and Final Bomb	17
7500 psi Tests	20
Adiabatic Compression Tests	26
Purpose and Discussion	26
Preliminary Tests	26
7500 psi Tests	28
Promoted Ignition Tests	28
Purpose	28
Procedure	28
Preliminary Tests	30
7500 pcf Teats	32
Cimulated System Tests	72
	4) /.c
	49 1.e
	43
Materials of Construction and Arrangement of Equipment	45
Procedure	49
7500 psi Tests	50
Evaluation of Hardware Used in the Experimental Program	52
Gemini Regulator	52
High Pressure Valves	52
Tubing Connection and Fittings	53
Miscellaneous	55

.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Page

CONCLUSI	lons	•	•	•	•	٠	•	•	٠	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	٩	•	•	•	•	٠	٠	٠	4	55
RECOMMEN	DAT	101	NS	•	•	•	•	٠	•	•	•	•	•	٠	٠	•	٠	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	56
REFERENC	CES	•	•	٠	•	•	•	•	•	٠	•	٠	•	•	٠	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	٠	•	•	•	٠	•	•	•	57
APPENDIC	CES	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	٠	•	٠	•	•	٠	٠	•	•	•	•	•	•	5 9
1.	CAI ADI	LCU I AB	71./ A7	\T] [][ON C	0 I 0 P)F (PF	TH	IEC SS 1)RE LON	TI	C.C.A		TE •	:MP •	e.	AT	UR	E.	А1 •	ТА •	\1)	IEI •) I	3Y	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	59
11.	CAI	LCU	IL.	\T]	0	! C	F	СС	ME	PRE	ss	IF	311	.11	Y	FA	CI	OF	ន	FC	OR	03	(YC	gen	١.	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	61
111.	AD	LAE	BA]	[]	: c	:01	(PF	ŒS	6S]	101	1 -	• 4	4 0		ITE	101	,LF	D	10	I NE	[T]	[0]	i 1	æ(CHA	١N)	(S)	1	•	•	•	•	63
IV.	TA	BLE	S	OI	7 E	EX I	?EI	211	Æ	IT/	I	D/	\T <i>i</i>	A	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	٠	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	67

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure	1.	Warm Converter for High Pressure Oxygen	12
Figure	2.	High Pressure Oxygen Bomb: A. Assembled B. Disassembled.	12
Figure	3.	High Pressure Valve	13
Figure	4.	Tubing Connection	13
Figure	5.	High Pressure Laboratory	15
Figure	6.	Control Area of High Pressure Test Equipment	15
Figure	7.	Physical Arrangement of Test Equipment in High Pressure Bays.	16
Figure	8.	Sand-bagged Warm Converter	16
Figure	9.	Prototype High Pressure Oxygen Bomb	17
Figure	10.	Schematic of Prototype Oxygen Bomb in Horizontal Position	18
Figure	11.	Schematic of Linde Standard Oxygen Bomb	18
Figure	12.	Schematic of Prototype Oxygen Bomb in Vertical Position	18
Figure	13.	Prototype Bomb as Used for Preliminary Tests	19
Figure	14.	10,000 psi Oxygen Bomb With Test Tube Enclosed	21
Figure	15.	Schematic for 7500 psi Oxygen Bomb Test	22

vi

.

LIST_OF_FIGURES (Continued)

Page

Pioumo	14	High Brogging Awagen Bank Tout Sateurs	
Figure	10.	A. Complete Set-up B. Close-up of Bomb in Furnace	23
Figure	17.	Preliminary Adiabatic Compression Test Set-up	27
Figure	18.	7500 psi Adiabatic Compression Test Set-up	27
Figure	19.	Schematic for Adiabatic Compression Test	29
Figure	20.	Pressure Profile of Adiabatic Compression Test	30
Figure	21.	Physical Configurations Used with Promoter Material and Metal Specimens in Pyrex Test Tube During Promoted Ignition Tests	31
Figure	22.	Pressure Profile of Promoted Ignition Test	33
Figure	23.	Promoted Ignition Test, Stainless Steel	35
Figure	24.	Promoted Ignition Test, Inconel X-750	36
Figure	25.	Promoted Ignition Test, Aluminum	37
Figure	26.	Promoted Ignition Test, Copper and Lead	38
Figure	27.	Promoted Ignition Test, Brass	39
Figure	28.	Promoted Ignition Test, Inconel 600	40
Figure	29.	Promoted Ignition Test, Monel 400	41
Figure	30.	Promoted Ignition Test, Nickel	42
Figure	31.	Promoted Ignition Test, Gold and Silver	43
Figure	32.	Promoted Ignition Test:	44
Figure	33.	Schematic for Simulated System Tests	46
Figure	34.	Picture of Simulated System Test	47
Figure	35.	View of Gemini Regulator Location in Simulated System	47
Figure	36.	Pressure Profile of Simulated System Test	51
Figure	37.	Typical Phoneraphic Record of Electrostatic Charge Developed i mulated Test	51
Figure	38.	High Pressure e Stems	54

LIST OF FIGURES (Continued)

ł -

🐂 از این از این میدید.

z

1 1 1

.

· 1999年,1999年,1999年,1998年,1998年,1998年,1999年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1997年,1998年,1998年,1998年,1998年,1999年,1999年,19

Page

Figure 39.	Ruptured 10,000 psi Bursting Discs
Figure 40.	Theoretical Temperature Attained by Adiabatic Compression . 60
Figure 41.	Compressibility Factor for Oxygen at 293° K
Figure 42.	Sketch
Figure 43.	Sketch

LIST OF TABLES

Table	1.	Relative Resistance of Metals and Alloys to Ignition and Combustion in Oxygen in Decreasing Order	9
Table	2.	Matals and Alloys Selected for Test in 7500 psi Oxygen	10
Table	3.	Lowest Spontaneous Ignition Temperature Found in 7500 psi Oxygen and in 2000 psi Oxygen	25
Table	4.	Metals and Alloys Arranged in Order of Decreasing Resis- tance to Ignition and Combustion in 7500 psi Oxygen	33
Table	5.	Theoretical Temperature Attained by Adiabatic Compression .	59
Table	6.	Compressibility Factor for Oxygen at Various Pressures	61
Table	7.	Summary of Preliminary High Pressure Oxygen Bomb Tests and Correlation with 2000 psi Prototype Bomb Tests and Linde Standard 2000 psi Oxygen Bomb Tests	68
Table	8.	Summary of High Pressure Oxygen Bomb Tests	69
Table	9.	Preliminary Data - Promoted Ignition Test	74
Table	10.	Promoted Ignition Test	75
Table	11.	Pressurization of Simulated System with Oxygen	78
Table	12.	Adiabatic Compression Tests	80

INTRODUCTION

The ease with which materials of construction ignite and combust in a gaseous oxygen environment has been a problem of long standing to those concerned with the safe design of oxygen handling equipment. Use of oxygen containing equipment has generally been limited to pressures below 3000 psi due to lack of knowledge of behavior of materials at higher pressures.

The use of gaseous oxygen at higher pressures in aerospace breathing systems (4), (17) * has increased the hazards inherent in an oxygen system (13) and additionally introduced several unknown entities. Some of these unknowns were investigated and evaluated by Baum, Goobich, and Trainer (1).

The present investigation was initiated to obtain further data on the behavior of materials in high pressure oxygen. Specifically, the purpose of the study was threefold:

1. Develop ignition data on thread lubricants, thread sealants, fluorocarbon plastics, and metals in 7500 psi oxygen.

2. Determine the hazards in charging a simulated system to 7500 psi with oxygen.

3. Measure the electrostatic charge developed during the charging of the simulated system.

PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT

The program was divided into three major areas of investigation and information was developed in each of these areas:

- 1. Selection of Test Methods.
- 2. Selection of Materials for Test.
- 3. Design of Equipment

Selection of Test Methods

Evaluation of various test methods was made to determine the amount of useful information which might be derived from a particular type of test in order to select the tests which would yield the most information in the time interval of the contract. It was recognized that each test would require development of parameters at 7500 psi which would give reliable and consistent data for comparison of materials.

^{*} Numbers in parentheses refer to references on page 57.

The tests considered for use in testing relative compatibility of materials in this program were:

- 1. Oxygen Bomb Test
- 2. Impact Sensitivity Test
- 3. Velocity Impact Test
- 4. Hot Wire Test
- 5. Promoted Ignition Test
- 6. Adiabatic Compression Test

Oxygen Bomb Test

The oxygen bomb test is a standard test used to determine the spontaneous ignition temperature of organic materials in 2000 psi oxygen. A specimen of the material to be tested is placed in an oxygen bomb and subjected to 2000 psi oxygen pressure; the bomb is then heated until spontaneous ignition of the sample material occurs or until the temperature reaches 500° C, whichever occurs first.

This test is considered to be an excellent test for thread lubricants, thread sealants, and fluorocarbon plastics. By comparing tests at 2000 psi and at 7500 psi, the effect of oxygen pressure on the spontaneous ignition temperature of the material could be determined.

Impact Sensitivity Test

This test is made by impregnating a specimen of the material with liquid oxygen and dropping a known weight through a given distance so that a hammer with a specified area impacts the sample. This test yields values denoting the amount of kinetic energy required to produce a reaction. This subject has been well covered by Reynales (11), (12), and it was not felt that enough additional information would be derived from the test to justify its use.

Velocity Impact Test

The velocity impact test can be used to test either non-metallic material or metallic material. The test is made in the following manner: A standard powdered material is injected into a high velocity oxygen stream and, after being accelerated to the velocity of the stream, is impacted against a specimen of the material to be tested. The heat generated during the impact ignites the powdered material and subjects the specimen to a known quantity of energy at an oxygen pressure variable from 50 to 700 psig.

This test has been used at Linde as a sorting tool to provide information on metals and alloys and the results concur with Linde experience. However, the specimen itself is in comparatively low-pressure oxygen and further tests by this method were not expected to yield as much additional information as other tests.

Hot Wire Test

ł

This test was first used in 1923 by the Bureau of Mines (7), (8) to determine the ignition temperature of metals in oxygen at various pressures. It is based on the measurement of the electrical resistance of a wire specimen of the metal or alloy at its ignition point. Prior calibration of the resistance of wire specimens versus temperature must be made.

The test suffers from a number of deficiencies and has yielded anomalous results in Linde tests which were made in 2000 psi oxygen. It might be possible to overcome the deficiencies of this test if enough time were available but even then there would be no guarantee that the results would be satisfactory.

Promoted Ignition Test

The promoted ignition test is designed to determine the resistance to ignition and the amount of burning after ignition of the more resistant metals. It has been used previously at Linde to develop information on the combustion of metals and the ability of a given system to resist conflagration. Its use in this program would be an extension of the test to higher pressures to supplement the information which has been developed to date.

The test is made by subjecting the metal specimen to the energy released when a promoter material is heated to its spontaneous ignition temperature in oxygen. This test has considerable built-in flexibility by varying the weight of the promoter material, the weight of the metal, or the configuration of the metal specimen.

Adiabatic Compression Test

This test could be used to test either metal specimens or nonmetallic specimens. The sample contained in a test vessel at 15 psia of oxygen is subjected to the temperature developed when the vessel is rapidly pressurized to oxygen pressures ranging from 2000 psi to 8000 psi. Theoretically, extremely high temperatures may be reached by adiabatic compression (Appendix I) and it was expected that this test would yield some good data.

This type of test was also expected to be applicable in defining the hazards in charging a simulated system.

The test methods selected for use in this program were:

- 1. Oxygen Bomb Test
- 2. Promoted lgnition Test
- 3. Adiabatic Compression Test

Selection of Materials for Test

The number of materials available for testing in a program of this type is almost unlimited. Therefore, it was necessary to select those materials which it was thought would yield the most information. Selection was made by correlation of information found in the literature and that derived from unpublished Linde test programs.

Thread Lubricants and Thread Sealants

The subject of available thread lubricants and thread sealants has been covered quite well by Reynales (12). Using this information and that available from Linde files, a number of materials were chosen to be tested. It was known beforehand that most of the materials selected for test would not be suitable for use in 7500 psi oxygen. In fact, a few are not suitable for 2000 psi oxygen. However, the most useful information expected from the oxygen bomb test was whether the spontaneous ignition temperature of a material in 7500 psi oxygen would differ from its spontaneous ignition temperature in 2000 psi oxygen. By testing some materials which would ignite at low temperatures as well as some which would ignite at high temperatures, the effect of pressure on the spontaneous ignition temperature of typical materials could be determined.

The materials selected for test are as follows:

1. Thread Lubricants

a. <u>Aroclor 1254</u> - A chlorinated phenyl compound produced by Monsanto Chemical Company

b. <u>Dixon's Flake Graphite No. 1</u> - Dixon Corporation, Bristol, Rhode Island

c. <u>Oxweld Anti-Friction Compound No. 54</u> - A proprietary compound of Union Carbide Corporation, Linde Division. It is not recommended for service above 150° F or 300 psi of oxygen.

d. <u>Kel-F 90 Grease</u> - A formulation of poly chlorotrifluoroethylene oils and waxes with an inert gelling agent manufactured by Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Company.

e. <u>Helocarbon Grease Series 25-10</u> - A polychlorotrifluoroethylene formulation manufactured by Halocarbon Products Corporation, Hackensack, New Jersey.

f. <u>Helocarbon Oil Series 13-21</u> - A polychlorotrifluoroethylene oil marketed by Halocarbon Products Corporation.

g. <u>Molykote Z</u> - Molybdenum disulfide in dry powder form produced by The Alpha Corporation, Greenwich, Connecticut.

h. <u>Burnil Brand Microplates</u> - Thin platelets of synthetic mica available as a powder, as a suspension of the powder in water, or as a thin paper from Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Company.

1. Oxweld Anti-Friction Compound No. 64 - A proprietary product of Union Carbide Corporation, Linde Division. It is not recommended for service above 250° F or 500 psi of oxygen.

j. <u>Aluasol Fowder (325 mesh)</u> - This powder is composed of aluminum-magnesium-silicate of laminar lattice structure. It is used as an ingredient in solid film lubricants marketed by The Almasol Corporation, Fort Worth, Texas.

k. <u>High Purity Goop</u> - A proprietary lubricant made by Crawford Fitting Company, Cleveland, Ohio.

1. <u>Everlube Solid Film Lubricant No. 811</u> - A molybdenum disulfide dispersion available from Eve lube Corporation of America, North Hollywood, California.

m. <u>Oxylube No. 703</u> - A dry film lubricant based on molybdenum disulfide which is marketed by Drilube Company, Glendale, California.

2. Thread Sealants

a. Oxyseal - Parker-Hannifin Corporation, Cleveland, Ohio.

b. <u>Rectorseal No. 15</u> - Rector Well Equipment Company, Fort Worth. Texas

c. <u>Key Abso-lute</u> - W. K. M. Division of ACF Industries, Houston, Texas

d. <u>Mano Pipe and Joint Compound</u> - Mano Industries, Woodside, Long Island, New York

e. <u>Linde Green Pipe Joint Compound</u> - Union Carbide Corporation, Linde Division.

f. <u>50/50 Soft Solder</u>

Fluorocarbon Plastics and Elastomers

1. There were three types of fluorocarbon plastics which were of interest:

a. <u>Polytetrafluoroethylene(TFE)</u> - Marketed under the trade name of "Teflon" by E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc. and as "Halon" TFE by Allied Chemical Corporation.

b. <u>Polychlorotrifluoroethylene(CTFE)</u> - Marketed as "Kel-F" by Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Company, as "Polyfluoron" by Acme Resin Corporation, and as "Halon" VK and TVS by Allied Chemical Corporation.

c. <u>Polyfluoroethylenepropene (FEP)</u> - A copolymer of tetrafluoroethylene and hexafluoropropylene marketed under the trade name "Teflon" 10[°]X by E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc.

2. There were two types of fluoroelastomers of interest:

a. <u>Copolymers of vinylidene fluoride and hexafluoropropylene</u> -Available as "Fluorel" from Minnesota Min. ng and Manufacturing Company, and as "Viton" A, "Viton" A-HV, and "Viton" B from E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc.

b. <u>Copolymers of vinylidene fluoride and chlorotrifluoroethylene</u> -Marketed by Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Company, in two types, "KEL-F" Elastomer 3700 and "KEL-F" Elastomer 5500.

3. Additionally there are numerous companies which supply filled, formulated, or reinforced TFE.

4. The following materials were selected for test: *

a. <u>Teflon (Virgin TFE)</u> - E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc.
b. <u>Teflon 100X (FEP)</u> - E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc.
c. <u>Viton A (Virgin)</u> - E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc.
d. <u>Viton B (Virgin)</u> - E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc.
e. <u>Rulon A (Reinforced TFE)</u> - Dixon Corporation
f. <u>Rulon B (Reinforced TFE)</u> - Dixon Corporation
g. <u>Rulon C (Reinforced TFE)</u> - Dixon Corporation
h. <u>Duroid 5600 (60% Teflon, 40% aluminum silicate ceramic fibers)</u> - Rogers Corporation
i. <u>Duroid 5650 (75% Teflon, 25% aluminum silicate ceramic fibers)</u> - Rogers Corporation
j. <u>Duroid 5870 (85% Teflon, 15% glass fibers)</u> - Rogers Corporation
k. <u>Duroid 5813 (60% Teflon, 40% glass fibers with MoS₂ filler)</u> - Rogers Corporation
m. <u>Kel-F 81 (CTFE)</u> - Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Company
o. <u>Kel-F Elastomer 3700</u> - Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Company

Metals and Alloys

The oxidation, ignition, and combustion of metals in air and oxygen have received considerable attention in the past decade, but the ignition and burning of metals is still poorly understood. Knowledge of reaction kinetics and mechanics is sadly lacking. There are many investigators who have made significant contributions to this field. Their work is reviewed by Smeltzer and Perrow (16) and by Markstein (10). Because it is not the purpose of this investigation to become involved in the complicated mechanisms of ignition and combustion, only those articles which were considered to be of direct value to the present work have been referenced (1, 3, 6, 9, 14, 15).

The investigation of Dean and Thompson (3) yielded data which was directly applicable in helping to select the metals to be tested in the present investigation. Metal tubes were electrically heated to destruction in 50, 300, and 800 psia of oxygen, in a 50-50 mixture of oxygen and carbon dioxide, and in 100% carbon dioxide. Color motion picture photography recorded the manner in which the tubes heated and failed. The results of their tests showed that:

1. Stainless steels ignited within their melting range.

2. Steel alloys with no nickel content ignited at temperatures below their melting points.

3. Most of the nickel-based alloys tested did not ignite until the melting point was reached. At 800 psia both Inconel X and Monel failed at temperatures 250° to 500° F below their respective melting points.

^{*} Appreciation is expressed to the following companies for samples furnished for these tests: E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc., Rogers Corporation, Dixon Corporation, The Fluorocarbon Company, Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Company.

4. Nickel A d^{* -} not ignite, only melted.

l

L.

5. Copper ignited slightly below its melting point At a pressure of 300 psia approximately 70% of the test specimen was destroyed.

6. No ignition or burning of the aluminum alloy occurred, only melting.

7. For all the ferrous alloys tested, the rate of burning increased with the oxygen pressure.

8. Cobalt-based alloys ignited within their melting point range.

9. Titanium was the only metal which ignited in an atmosphere of carbon dioxide.

Reynolds ⁽¹⁴⁾ found that 18-8 stainless steel, copper, nickel, Inconel, and Inconel X melted before igniting in oxygen at pressures up to eight atmospheres.

Hill, Adamson, Foland, and Brissette (9) report that Inconel, copper, Monel, and aluminum did not have a spontaneous ignition temperature in the solid phase, and that iron, carbon steel, and common iron alloy had spontaneous ignition temperatures in the solid phase (below their melting points) and melted very rapidly while burning.

Baum, Goobich, and Trainer (1) found Monel and Type 316 stainless steel acceptable alloys of construction for 7500 psi oxygen systems but copper and brass possessed some undesirable characteristics.

Riehl, Key, and Gayle (15) report aluminum in gaseous oxygen to be sensitive to explosive shock while stainless steel is not.

Investigations previously made at Linde using the "Velocity Impact Test" (e.g. A known weight of powdered material was accelerated in a high velocity oxygen stream and impacted against the metal specimen) yielded the following results:

1. Carbon steel, cast iron, stainless steel, and aluminum could be ignited and completely consumed with the evolution of large quantities of energy.

2. Stainless steel and aluminum burned with explosive violence.

3. Copper, copper alloys, and Monels had a decided quenching effect on combustion.

The "Promoted Ignition Test" has been used in earlier work at Linde to investigate the resistance to ignition and the amount of burning after ignition of various metals in 2000 psi oxygen. In this test the metal specimen was subjected to the energy released when a promoter material was spontaneously ignited. Although this test does not provide absolute values it does effectively sort the metals in regard to their relative resistance to combustion. The results of this work are: 1. In general, metal alloys with a high percentage of nickel such as the Monels and Inconels have the highest resistance to combustion.

2. The resistance to combustion appeared to be related to the percentage of iron in an alloy.

3. The size of the metal sample will affect its resistance to combustion (e.g. the more subdivided a metal specimen, the easier it will ignite).

The results of Dean and Thompson (3) referred to earlier were evaluated in regard to the relative resistance to ignition and combustion of each metal tested and the metals are listed in Table 1 in the order of their decreasing resistance, with the most resistant metal at the top of the list.

The relative resistance of metals as determined by the "Velocity Impact Test" and the "Promoted Ignition Test" at Linde are also listed in Table 1 for comparison. It should be pointed out that there might be some shifting in the position of the metals in the "Promoted Ignition Test" column because in those cases where two or more metals showed similar resistance to ignition, the violence of the combustion determined the position. Also if a large enough number of tests were to be performed on each metal, statistically the position of a metal might be changed.

Of particular interest is the position occupied by aluminum. Dean and Thompson's work would place it at the top of the list while it is at the bottom of the list in the Linde tests. This is no doubt due to the fact that Dean and Thompson only heated the tube to its melting point. Grosse and Conway ⁽⁶⁾ have shown the ignition temperature of aluminum to be > 1000° C which is considerably above its melting point of 660° C. Aluminum is at the bottom of the ladder on the Linde tests because of its violent reaction once it becomes ignited.

It will be noted that nickel and copper alloys are at the top of the list in all three columns.

For the present investigation, metals and alloys were selected which would be representative of materials already tested in oxygen pressures up to 2000 psi. Results at 7500 psi could thus be compared to those obtained at the lower pressures. Additionally some other metals were chosen because of their possible usefulness in high pressure systems.

The metals and alloys selected for test, the melting point of each, and the reported ignition temperature in oxygen are presented in Table 2.

Design of Equipment

The materials of construction and the design of the equipment to be used in the test program was an area that received considerable attention. Because of the inherent hazards with gaseous oxygen and the magnification of these hazards with 7500 psi oxygen, it was necessary to select those materials which would be considered relatively safe by present available knowledge. Consequently nickel alloys were used in all critical pieces of apparatus. This resulted in considerable delay in initial construction of equipment.

TABLE 1.

RELATIVE RESISTANCE OF METALS AND ALLOYS TO IGNITION AND COMBUSTION IN OXYGEN IN DECREASING ORDER

Dean and (3) Thompson	Velocity Impact	Promoted Ignition
50-800 psi	50-100 psi	2000 psi
Aluminum	**Mone 1	**Monel
Nickel A	**K-Monel	**Incone1 600
*Hastellov C	***Tobin bronze	**Monel S
Mone 1	Copper	*Tobin bronze
*Hastellov X	Steel	** Duranickel
Incone1 X	18-8 stainless steel	***Ampco alloy No. 15
*Hastellov R	Aluminum	**Permanickel
Copper		** K-mone1
*Havnes 25		*Hastelloy R-235
*Multimet		Maraging Steel
18-8 Stainless Steel		Beryllium Copper
Other Stainless Steel		******Elgiloy
Carbon Steel		****Rene! 41
Titanium		**Inconel X-750
		*Multimet
		*Hastelloy X
		*Haynes 25

TRADEMARKS

18-8 Stainless Steel

***Everdur

Aluminum

*Union Carbide Corporation, Stellite Division **The International Nickel Company, Inc. ***Anaconda American Brass Company ********General Electric Company *****Ampco Metal, Inc. ******Elgin National Watch Company

METALS AND ALLOYS SELECTED FOR TEST IN 7500 PSI OXYGEN

METAL OR ALLOY	MELTING POINT C	IGNITION TEMPERATURE IN OXYGEN, C
1. <u>Stainless Steel</u>		
Туре 316	1375-1400	(0)
Type 304	1400-1475	M. P. (4)
Type 301	1400-1425	
2. Age-Hardening Stainless Steel		
*Type 17-7 PH	1415-1450	150-275 (a) below M.P.
3. <u>Nickel-Chromium Alloys</u>		
Inconel alloy 600		(5)
(formerly Inconel)	1400-1425	M. P. (0)
Inconel alloy X-750		
(formerly Inconel X)	1400-1425	150-275 (a) below M.P.
4. <u>Nickel - Copper Alloy</u>		
Nonel allow 400		
(formerly Monel)	1300-1350	150-275 below M.P. (a)
5. Other Metals and Alloys		
Aluminum	66 0	>1000 (c)
Nickel	1455	$\mathbf{M}.\mathbf{P}. (\mathbf{a})$
Copper	1082	$\langle \mathbf{M}, \mathbf{P}, \langle \mathbf{a} \rangle \langle \mathbf{a} \rangle$
Brass	9 32	<850 ^(a)
Silver	960	
Gold	1063	(c)
Lead	327	870

(a)	Reference	3
(b)	Reference	14
(c)	Reference	6
(d)	Reference	7

* Trademark of Armco Steel Corporation

-10-

High Pressure Oxygen Warm Converter

High pressure oxygen was generated in a warm converter. Required quantities of liquid oxygen were introduced into the warm converter and vaporized into the gaseous state to provide the necessary pressure. The warm converter was contained in a water bath with an inlet and outlet through which tap water flowed.

The converter was patterned after a previous Linde design which was modified to provide a larger capacity and a higher working pressure. The internal geometric volume of the converter is 425 cubic inches. Pressures up to 15,000 psi oxygen have been generated. Materials of construction were Inconel alloy X-750 and Monel alloy 400 which provided the strength for the pressures to be developed and also furnished a definite measure of safety because of their relative resistance to ignition. Figure 1 shows the top of the converter extending out of the water bath. All high pressure oxygen for the entire test program was generated in this warm converter.

Compressibility factors were calculated for oxygen at various pressures (Appendix II) for use during the test program.

High Pressure Oxygen Bomb

The original consideration given to a high pressure oxygen bomb was a design patterned after the one presently used at Linde for tests at 2000 psi. This bomb has a high mass with built-in cooling passages and integral heating unit. However, the use of a smaller bomb had several advantages relative to the present program and a small high pressure bomb was designed after substantial testing of a prototype bomb.

Figure 2 shows the high pressure bomb assembled and disassembled. Inconel X-750 was the material of construction because of the strength needed at the high temperatures to which the bomb would be heated.

Valves, Fittings, and Tubing

Initially all values were constructed of Monel alloy 400 with stems of Monel alloy K-500. Packing was glass filled TFE. All fittings and tubing were made of Monel 400. Fabrication was by a commercial vendor of high pressure equipment. At a later date, some stainless steel parts were substituted to expedite test work and to evaluate the use of stainless steel.

All values were rated at 30,000 psi with the exception of an airoperated value which was rated at 10,000 psi. All values were of standard construction as shown in Figure 3.

All fittings and tubing were rated at 30,000 psi with the exception of some $9/16^{\circ}$ O.D. x $5/16^{\circ}$ I.D. tubing which was only rated for 10,000 psi. The standard threaded and coned tubing connection was used as shown in Figure 4.

Simulated System

Construction of the simulated system will be discussed later under the experimental program.



FIGURE 1. WARM CONVERTER FOR HIGH PRESSURE OXYGEN





A. ASSEMBLED

FIGURE 2. HIGH PRESSURE OXYGEN BOMB

B. DISASSEMBLED



1. Bottom Packing Washer

- 4. Rotating Stem
- 2. Glass Filled Teflon Packing
- 4A. Non-Rotating Stem

3. Top Packing Washer

FIGURE 3. HIGH PRESSURE VALVE



FIGURE 4. TUBING CONNECTION

-13-

EXPERIMENTAL PROGRAM

High Pressure Laboratory

Construction of Laboratory

All experimental tests were performed in two high pressure bays of a high pressure laboratory shown in Figure 5.

The bays of the laboratory are constructed of reinforced concrete walls with one blow-out wall. The blow-out wall faces a dirt hill at the rear of the laboratory. Heavy blast mats extend upward from the top of the hill to stop flying projectiles. The same type of blast mat is used to cover the ceiling and other critical points in each bay.

All values and controls are operated from outside the test area by extensions through the heavy concrete wall (Figure 6). All visual observations are made from the operating area with the use of mirrors.

Physical Arrangement of Test Equipment

A common entrance door from the operating area serves both high pressure bays with the entry way separated from each bay by heavy steel plate. The warm converter was placed in one bay and the test equipment was placed in the other bay so as to isolate the high pressure oxygen generating equipment from the test equipment in the event of a failure in either section. Tubing connection was carried via a small tunnel between the two bays. Additionally the warm converter was sandbagged. This physical arrangement can be seen in Figure 7 which shows test equipment set up for the high pressure oxygen bomb test. Figure 8 shows the sandbagged warm converter.

Cleaning and Assembly of Test Equipment

All values, fittings, tubing, and apparatus were disassembled and cleaned for oxygen service by standard vapor degreasing and washing methods. Threads of value stems, tubing, and gland nuts were given a very thin film of fluorocarbon lubricant immediately prior to assembly. These threads are normally not exposed to high pressure oxygen because of weep holes in the fittings.

All liquid oxygen entering the warm converter was passed through a filter which is rated to remove 99.5% of all particles greater than one micron.

High Pressure Oxygen Bomb Tests

Purpose

ļ

The oxygen bomb test determines the spontaneous ignition or explosion temperature of a material in contact with oxygen at some given pressure. The test provides a means for determining the allowable temperature to which a material may be exposed in oxygen at the given pressure without the possibility

- 14 -



FIGURE 5. HIGH PRESSURE LABORATORY



FIGURE 6. CONTROL AREA OF HIGH PRESSURE TEST EQUIPMENT



FIGURE 7. PHYSICAL ARRANGEMENT OF TEST EQUIPMENT IN HIGH PRESSURE BAYS



FIGURE 8. SANDBAGGED WARM CONVERTER

of spontaneous ignition. A material should not be used in oxygen service where its spontaneous ignition temperature might be approached; a substantial safety factor is normally provided.

Procedure

The test is made by placing a sample of the material in the oxygen bomb, pressurizing with oxygen, and heating the bomb until the spontaneous ignition occurs. The temperature and pressure are recorded at which the ignition takes place.

Preliminary Tests of Prototype Bomb and Final Bomb

1. Prototype Bomb

As mentioned earlier the use of an oxygen bomb with a small mass would have some advantages in the 7500 psi program over the design used for the standard Linde 2000 psi bomb which has a large mass. Therefore, a prototype bomb (Figure 9) was purchased for making preliminary tests at 2000 psi. It was rated for 10,000 psi at a temperature of 1000°F.

This bomb was essentially a piece of high pressure stainless steel tubing having a one-half inch inside diameter. Each end of the tubing was coned and threaded into a hexagonal cap with a coned seating surface. The opposite end of each cap had a 1/4" high pressure connection. A pencil ironconstantan thermocouple with an Inconel shield was introduced through one end and oxygen gas through the other end.



FIGURE 9. PROTOTYPE HIGH PRESSURE OXYGEN BOMB



- 1. Thermocouple
- Specimen 2.
- 3. Specimen Boat
- 4. Specimen Crucible
- Specimen Test Tube 5.
- FIGURE 12. SCHEMATIC OF PROTOTYPE OXYGEN BOMB IN VERTICAL POSITION

By testing materials which had previously been tested in the Linde standard bomb, it was possible to determine if comparable ignition temperatures were obtained. Initially the prototype bomb was tried in a horizontal position as shown in the schematic of Figure 10. The sample was placed in a quartz boat and slid in one end of the tube which was then placed in a tube furnace and heated. Results were unpredictable and one low-ignition material decomposed without the occurrence of spontaneous ignition.

Because spontaneous ignition is thought to occur in the gas phase by the decomposition products of the test material reaching an explosive concentration in the oxygen, it was postulated that the decomposition products were diffusing through the bomb as it lay in the horizontal position and not reaching an explosive concentration. In the Linde standard bomb (shown schematically in Figure 11), the sample is contained in a crucible and the gases collecting above the sample are confined to the crucible where they reach an explosive concentration.

By placing the prototype bomb in a vertical position (schematically shown in Figure 12) and using a 10 mm x 35 mm Pyrex glass test tube (without lip) as a sample holder, it was found that the spontaneous ignition temperature obtained on typical materials was the same as that found in the standard Linde bomb.

The prototype bomb, as pictured in Figure 13, was used to investigate many parameters of the bomb test to determine the effect on the spontaneous



FIGURE 13. PROTOTYPE BOMB AS USED FOR PRELIMINARY TESTS

ignition temperature caused by variations in sample weight, heating rates, etc. The results of these tests are presented in Table 7 of Appendix IV. Heating rate and sample size of the materials tested were found to have little effect on the spontaneous ignition temperature.

During these tests the prototype bomb began to leak because scoring occurred at the seating interfaces of the tube and cap. The leakage could be stopped by resurfacing the seating surfaces or by the use of thin copper gaskets, but the leakage was severe enough at 2000 psi to make a new bomb design desirable for the 7500 psi tests.

2. Final Bomb

The geometric configuration of the prototype bomb had been proven out in preliminary tests, so the final bomb was designed using a 1/2" I.D. opening. Incomel X-750 was used as the material of construction because of its strength at high temperatures. A lens ring was used to provide a leaktight seal as shown in a schematic of the bomb in Figure 14B.

A few tests with standard materials in the new bomb yielded high spontaneous ignition temperatures. This was demonstrated to be due to convection currents set up in the bomb by part of the bomb cavity at the top being outside the heating zone of the furnace. (The entire cavity of the prototype bomb was physically in the furnace.) A convection from the cold zone at the top to the warm zone at the bottom caused the decomposition products to diffuse. Thus an explosive concentration did not materialize until a higher temperature was reached.

This situation was corrected by making a lens ring plug as shown schematically in Figure 14A. This is the design finally used for all the high pressure tests. In preliminary tests made with this design at 2000 psi, it was found that the spontaneous ignition temperature of standard materials compared favorably with those catermined in the standard Linde bomb and in the prototype bomb. Preliminary tests made on these same standard materials at oxygen pressures of 5500 to 9000 psi indicated that their spontaneous ignition temperatures at these higher pressures were going to be the same as that at 2000 psi.

This preliminary data is also presented in Table 7 of Appendix IV.

7500 psi Testa

1. Test Set-up and Procedure

A schematic of the test set-up for the high pressure oxygen bomb is shown in Figure 15 and a pictorial view of the set-up is shown in Figure 16.

With the sample in the bomb, the bomb is successively pressurized with cylinder oxygen and blown down to atmospheric pressure four times. This is done slowly. Finally the bomb is pressurized with high pressure oxygen from the converter. The fill lines from the converter and the 2000 psi cylinder oxygen are blown down to isolate the bomb from oxygen sources. The bomb is then heated in the furnace until spontaneous ignition occurs.

-20-



FIGURE 14. 10,000 PSI OXYGEN BOMB WITH TEST TUBE ENCLOSED





- 1. 10,000 psi Pressure Recorder
- 2. 10,000 psi Bursting Disc
- 3. 15,000 psi Pressure Gage
- 4. Blowdown to Outside
- 5. 50,000 psi Pressure Gage
- 6. 16,500 psi Bursting Disc
- 7. Oxygen Bomb

- 8. Furnace
- 9. Blow Down Valve
- 10. 3,000 psi Safety Disc
- 11. Warm Converter
- 12. Water Bath
- 13. 3,000 psi Oxygen Gage
- 14. Cylinder Oxygen- 2,000 psi

FIGURE 15. SCHEMATIC FOR 7500 PSI OXYGEN BOMB TEST





A. COMPLETE SET-UP

B. CLOSE-UP OF BOMB IN FURNACE

FIGURE 16. HIGH PRESSURE OXYGEN BOMB TEST SET-UP

Because the pressure in the bomb increases with temperature, it is necessary to select a starting pressure which will yield a final pressure of 7500 psi at the spontaneous ignition temperature of the material under test.

A variac was used to control the rate of heating of the furnace. For expected low ignition temperatures, the variac was set at a lower value than for expected high ignition temperatures. This produced comparable heating rates over the last twenty minutes prior to ignition.

2. Spontaneous Ignition Temperatures

Ignition temperatures were determined for each material in 7500 psi oxygen and in 2000 psi oxygen using the high pressure bomb and the same test parameters. The lowest ignition temperature found for each material in 7500 psi oxygen and in 2000 psi oxygen are presented in Table 3. Complete information on all materials tested may be found in Table 8 of Appendix IV. In general, the ignition temperatures at 7500 psi were found to be the same as those at 2000 psi.

Results with Oxylube No. 703 demonstrate the fact that with some materials the weight of the sample is significant in determining its spontaneous ignition temperature in the bomb. Results with Oxweld Anti-Friction Compound No. 64 also demonstrate the effect of weight with some materials and results with Everlube No. 811 demonstrate the effect that the physical geometry of the sample can have on the ignition point.

After a conversation with personnel of the Swagelok Company, the results with High Purity Goop were attributed to the possible non-homogeneity of the product. High Purity Goop is a mixture of fluorocarbon materials and one test sample may have contained more of one component than that contained in another sample.

3. Evaluation of Results

a. Thread Lubricants

A study of ignition temperatures presented in Table 3 shows the fluorocarbon lubricants to have high spontaneous ignition temperatures.

Dixon's Flake Graphite, Burnil Brand Microplates, and Almasol Powder did not ignite at 500°C and therefore may be applicable to lubrication problems in high pressure oxygen. However, experience with these materials is lacking and other problems that might be associated with their use would need to be ascertained.

Molykote Z and products formulated with molybdenum disulfide, Everlube No. 811 and Oxylube No. 703, have low ignition temperatures and are not recommended for use in either 7500 psi or 2000 psi oxygen service.

b. Thread Sealants

Ignition temperatures of those thread sealants tested are all approximately the same except for Mano Pipe and Joint Compound and 50-50 soft solder. If the temperature rise and pressure rise when ignition occurs (Table 8 of Appendix IV) are evaluated in reference to the sample weight, it appears that ignition of Key Abso-Lute or Linde Green Pipe Joint Compound results in the liberation of less energy than the ignition of Rectorseal No. 15 or Parker Oxyseal.

Mano Pipe and Joint Compound has a relatively high ignition temperature and a comparatively small amount of energy release but Linde experience with the sealing characteristics of the product show that it does not meet the specifications required for high pressure oxygen service. However, further development of this product might make its sealing characteristics acceptable.

Soft solder did not ignite at 500°C, but its melting point is 225°C. It would not present any ignition hazard but evaluation of its use as a sealant by tinning of threads would need to be made.

c. Fluorc arbon Plastics and Elastomers

Teflon (TFE) and filled TFE products have the highest spontaneous ignition temperatures with Kel-F 31 being next highest. The ignition temperatures of the fluorocarbon elastomers are substantially lower than those of the fluorocarbon plastics.

TABLE 3

LOWEST SPONTANEOUS IGNITION TEMPERATURE FOUND IN 7500 PSI OXYGEN AND IN 2000 PSI OXYGEN, °C

.

	7500 psi	2000 psi
Thread Lubricants		
Aroclor 1254	355	376
Dixon's Flake Graphite No. 1	No ignition 500°C	No ignition 500°C
Kel-F 90 Grease	435	435
Oxweld Anti-Friction Compound No. 54	230	237
Burnil Brand Microplates	No ignition 500°C	No ignition 500°C
Molykote Z	267	277
Halocarbon Oil Series 13-21	435	427
Halocarbon Grease Series 25-10	438	431
Oxweld Anti-Friction Compound No. 64	410	410
Everlube No. 811	216	250
Oxylube No. 703	190	238
High Purity Goop	411	398
Almasol Powder	No ignition 500°C	No ignition 500°C
Thread Sealants		
Oxyseal	347	360
Mano Pipe and Joint Compound	422	430
Key Abso-lute	342	355
Rectorseal No. 15	355	374
Linde Green Pipe Joint Compound	362	356
50-50 Soft Solder	No ignition 500°C	No ignition 500°C
Fluorocarbon Plastics and Elastomers		
Viton A (Virgin)	300	310
Viton B (Virgin)	316	325
Teflon (Virgin)	465	469
Teflon 100 X	410	413
Rulon A	465	463
Rulon B	460	466
Rulon C	4 65	458
Duroid 5600	470	468
Duroid 5650	444	461
Duroid 5870	463	452
Duroid 5813	463	463
Kel-F 81	425	431
Kel-F Elastomer 3700	332	341
Kel-F Elastomer 5500	340	352
Rubber Compound		
Neoprene	190	200

TFE products and Kel-F 81 both liberate only a small amount of energy on ignition, indicated by the low temperature and pressure rise on ignition when compared to that of other materials.

4. Conclusions

a. Because the spontaneous ignition temperatures of the majority of the materials tested can be attained by adiabatic compression, only those that did not ignite at 500°C can be recommended as not presenting a hazard. Further investigation would be required to determine other problems that might be associated with their use.

b. It is recognized that some type of material is needed for dynamic and static seals. The use of TFE or glass-filled TFE in these instances would be recommended because of the low energy release of TFE. However, these would be recommended only if tightly confined. Because TFE, per se, cold flows, the glass-filled TFE would receive a higher recommendation.

Adiabatic Compression Tests

Purpose and Discussion

Originally it was thought that this test could be used to test specimens of various metallic and non-metallic materials to show that the material could or could not be ignited by adiabatic compression. Calculation of theoretical temperatures attainable by adiabatic compression (Appendix I) indicated that the melting points of most metals to be tested would be exceeded. Because these temperatures would not be reached in actual practice, it was thought that experimental tests would be in order to determine the peak temperatures attainable.

(13) reports that temperature rises of 560°F were measured by sudden opening of a shut-off value and pressurizing with 2200 psi nitrogen. In shock tube experiments with oxygen, peak temperatures of over 2000°F were recorded and all materials tested including Teflon, Kel-F, Buna-n, and butyl rubber were burned. Greenspan⁽⁵⁾ reported ignition of Teflon and Kel-F by adiabatic compression.

A shock tube could have been used in the present program for this type of experiment but this would require the use of a bursting disc and the likely probability that a piece of the bursting disc might impact the specimen and invalidate results. It was also thought that a shock tube would not duplicate any condition that might exist during charging of a receiver at 7500 psi. Therefore, a quick-opening air-operated valve was purchased for use in adiabatic tests.

Preliminary Tests

Before the air-operated value was received, a few crude tests were made at 2000 psi to determine possible test parameters. The tests were made using the apparatus shown in Figure 17. Both nitrogen and oxygen at 2000 psi were used for these tests and a small test volume varying from 10 cc to 50 cc was suddenly charged to 2000 psi by opening a ball-cock value by hand as quickly



FIGURE 17. PRELIMINARY ADIABATIC COMPRESSION TEST SET-UP



FIGURE 18. 7500 PSI ADIABATIC COMPRESSION TEST SET-UP
as possible. Results of these tests are not tabulated because of information which was developed later. It will suffice here to say that the maximum rise in temperature measured was only 93°C but that two-milligram slivers of lead were melted in this apparatus which indicated that temperatures in the order of 327°C were momentarily reached.

7500 psi Tests

When the quick-opening air-operated valve was received, experimental tests at 2000 psi showed that the opening time of the valve was in the order of 0.5 second and the pressurization time of a 20-inch section of 5/16" I.D. tubing required 0.05 second. Calculations based on these measurements indicated that the temperatures developed would not begin to approach theoretical. (See Appendix III). Consequently the use of this test became unattractive in the testing of metals, and because it was already known that organic materials could be raised to their spontaneous ignition temperatures by 2000 psi oxygen, there was no advantage in further use of the test.

The air-operated value (with 5/16" I.D. ports) was purchased for a dual purpose. It was to be used in the charging of a simulated system. While setting up for the simulated system the opportunity to make some quick temperature measurements presented itself. The tip of a 1/16" incomel shielded pencil thermocouple was removed to expose the bare iron-constantan junction. This was placed at the end of various lengths of 5/16" I.D. tubing. The tubing was then suddenly pressurized from an intermediate storage vessel by opening the airoperated value. During these quick tests a maximum temperature of 378°C was recorded when a 51-inch section of tubing was pressurized to 6650 psi. Temperature measurements beyond this pressure were not made. The arrangement for the test is shown in Figure 18 and a schematic of the set-up in Figure 19.

At a later date, samples of Kel-F 81, virgin Viton A, and virgin Teflon were quickly tested in the same set-up by placing the specimens at the dead end of the tube and suddenly pressurizing them to pressures ranging from 6300 to 6900 psi with oxygen. All specimens spontaneously ignited. Results are reported in Table 12 of Appendix IV. During these tests a pressure transducer and recorder in the system indicated that pressurization occurred in 0.05 sec. (Figure 20). Results of these tests only proved that the ignition temperatures of these materials could be reached in this set-up which was expected.

Promoted Ignition Tests

Purpose

The promoted ignition test is a means of evaluating the relative resistance to ignition and combustion of various metals by subjecting the metal specimen to the energy released when a promoter material is heated to its spontaneous ignition temperature in oxygen at a given pressure. The test from a practical standpoint shows what can happen when an elastomeric material, such as a gasket or O-ring, ignites in an oxygen system.

Procedure

The procedure for this test is the same as the procedure for the oxygen bomb test but a metal specimen as well as the promoter material is placed in the Pyrex test tube. Refer to Figure 15 for a schematic of the test set-up.



<u>KEY</u>

- 1. 0-10,000 psi Recorder
- 2. 10,000 psi Bursting Disc
- 3. 10,000 psi Gage
- 4. Storage Vessel
- 5. Air-Operated Valve
- 6. 5/16" I.D. Tubing
- 7. 5/16" I.D. Coupling
- 8. 1/16" Thermocouple or Specimen of Material
- A. High Pressure Oxygen from Converter
- B. 2000 psi Cylinder Oxygen

FIGURE 19. SCHEMATIC FOR ADIABATIC COMPRESSION TEST

-29-



FIGURE 20. PRESSURE PROFILE OF ADIABATIC COMPRESSION TEST

Preliminary Tests

It was necessary to determine the parameters which would give reproducible and comparable results on the various metals to be tested. Preliminary tests were carried out at 2000 psi. A review of promoter materials had narrowed the choice to neoprene or Viton A. Two or three tests were made with Viton A but neoprene was selected because of its lower ignition temperature and the possibility that decomposition products from the Viton A might effect the outcome of the test.

Neoprene O-rings were ordered for these tests and purchased with the understanding that all O-rings would be from the same batch of neoprene in order to obtain uniform spontaneous ignition temperatures. However, difficulty was experienced in that the ignition temperature of the neoprene varied substantially which is typical with this type of compound. This did not seem to materially affect the test results but it did cause the pressure at the spontaneous ignition temperature to vary because of the pressure dependency on the temperature of the bomb.

Various weight and size combinations as well as physical relationships were tried until one was found which would yield comparable results. These various configurations are schematically shown in Figure 21.

Metal specimens of 0.005-inch thick foil were used. Certified analyses of the metal foils were obtained. Original plans were either to use a constant weight of promoter and vary the physical dimensions of the metal specimen or to use fixed physical dimensions for the metal specimen and vary the weight of the promoter. The latter condition appeared to be more attractive after completion of all the 2000 psi tests and some of the 7500 psi tests. The final physical configuration chosen for the 7500 psi tests is that shown in Figure 21F.

Twenty-nine preliminary tests were performed at 2000 psi (Table 9 of Appendix IV). However, when tests were started at 7500 psi it was discovered



KEY

- A. Formed a cylinder of the metal specimen to fit inside the neoprene O-ring. Specimen in a vertical position.
- B. Rolled the neoprene O-ring within a cylinder of the metal specimen. Ends were open and specimen in a horizontal position.
- C. Formed a cylinder of the metal specimen and lightly crimped the promoter into the bottom of the specimen which was in a vertical position.
- D. Metal specimen in a flat horizontal position and the neoprene on top of the specimen.
- E. Metal specimen in a flat horizontal position and the neoprene underneath the specimen.
- F. Formed a half-cylinder from a long metal specimen with the neoprene crimped into the bottom of the specimen which was always in a semi-vertical position.

1. METAL 2. NEOPRENE

FIGURE 21. PHYSICAL CONFIGURATIONS USED WITH PROMOTER MATERIAL AND METAL SPECIMENS IN PYREX TEST TUBE DURING PROMOTED IGNITION TESTS that results were significantly different from those obtained in the 2000 psi tests in that the weight of neoprene required to bring about combustion of the metal was less. This was attributed to the geometric configuration of the bomb, the physical position of the metal specimen in the test tube during preliminary tests, and the difference in oxygen pressures. All of these factors would favor the blanketing of the metal specimen by the ignition products of CO_2 and H_2O formed during combustion of the neoprene. At the lower pressure of 2000 psi the combustion products would occupy a much greater volume than at 7500 psi.

Although the tests at 2000 psi were informative it was necessary to develop new parameters at 7500 psi. Original intentions had been to perform identical tests at 2000 psi and at 7500 psi for comparison purposes, but tests at 2000 psi now had to be eliminated and only the 7500 psi tests were made.

7500 psi Tests

1. Discussion of Test

After completion of a number of tests at 7500 psi, a geometrical configuration of 5 millimeters by 30 millimeters was selected as the standard size for the 5-mil metal foil samples. By determining the weight of neoprene necessary to combust, partially combust, melt, or partially melt a specimen, the relative resistance to ignition and combustion was obtained for the metals and alloys.

The metals and alloys have been arranged in Table 4 in order of their decreasing resistance to ignition as determined by these tests in 7500 psi oxygen. Complete data on the tests is presented in Table 10 of Appendix IV.

It had been hopefully expected that we might be able to extract some temperature data from the pressure profiles in the bomb during the ignitions and a pressure transducer was connected into the bomb system. The pressure was recorded on a Sanborn 150 recorder which permitted suppression of several thousand pounds of pressure and, by means of an attenuator, the recorder could be spanned over a narrow pressure range if it were so desired. After a large number of tests and a study of the pressure profiles, the conclusion was reached that prediction of ignition temperatures could not be determined from the profiles. A typical pressure profile is shown in Figure 22.

2. Discussion of Results

a. From Table 4 it can be seen that nickel is by far the most resistant to ignition (gold and silver excepted) but if enough energy is present nickel will burn.

b. A standard specimen of Monel alloy 400 was never completely combusted so the amount of neoprene shown in Table 4 to completely combust the standard size specimen was estimated. The required weight of neoprene might actually be higher than the estimate which would improve the relative position of Monel 400.

-32-

TABLE 4

METALS AND ALLOYS ARRANGED IN ORDER OF DECREASING RESISTANCE TO IGNITION AND COMBUSTION IN 7500 PSI OXYGEN

Metal or Alloy	Weight of Neoprene to Completely Combust Standard Specimen 5 mm x 30 mm x 0.005"	
Gold	Only melts	
Silver	Only melts	
Nickel	48 to 56 mg*	
Monel alloy 400	18 to 19 mg*	
Yellow Brass (partial combustion only)	11.8 to 15.2 mg	
Inconel alloy 600	13.2 mg	
Aluminum	11.0 to 16.4 mg	
Copper	10.5 mg*	
Inconel alloy X-750	9.0 🙀	
Stainless steels	7.1 to 8.5 mg	

*Estimated from results of a number of tests which were either standard with only part of the specimen consumed or were not standard and either complete or partial combustion occurred.



FIGURE 22. PRESSURE PROFILE OF PROMOTED IGNITION TEST

c. It has been possible to demonstrate with some of the metals (e.g. copper, brass, Monel 400, and nickel) that ignition can be started and part of the specimen combusced without consuming all of the specimen. By varying the weight of neoprene only slightly, it has been possible to combust a small part of the specimen, a large part of the specimen, or all of the apecimen. This is characteristic of these metals and demonstrates their quenching effect once ignition has started. This is no doubt due to the low heats of combustion of these materials. Evidence of this is shown in Figures 26, 27, 29, and 30. Figures 23, 24, 25, 28, 31 and 32 show other ignition results.

d. Lead was not listed in Table 4 because 12.6 mg of nooprene melted the specimen into a ball with very little oxidation and no further tests were run. Therefore it was difficult to position it in the table.

e. Aluminum was tested with two different anodized surface thicknesses and also with what was thought to be normal surface condition if just exposed to the atmosphere. The amount of neoprene necessary to ignite the aluminum was not as clear cut as with other metals. However a range was established between 11.0 and 16.4 mg. Once ignited, the aluminum burned violently.

f. Gold and silver required more neoprene to melt the specimens than was required to ignite most of the other metals.

g. Brass had high resistance to ignition but it was always heavily oxidized.

h. Stainless steels were least resistant to ignition.

i. Samples of stainless steel enclosed in 5-mil Kel-F and 5-mil Teflon FEP were tested. This was intended to simulate a coating of these materials on the metal. Complete ignition occurred in all cases.

j. Two samples of aluminum coated on one side with Kel-F were tested. Ine Kel-F disappeared in one case without ignition and ignited in the other case. The aluminum was not affected in either case.

3. Evaluation of Test Results

a. With the exception of aluminum, results of these tests generally agree with those previously made at Linde in 2000 psi oxygen and with those of Duan and Thompson (3). (See Table 1.)

b. Nickel has the highest resistance to ignition and combustion. Therefore it would be the first choice for construction of a high pressure oxygen receiver from the standpoint of compatibility with oxygen.

c. Monel alloy 400, Inconel alloy 600, and brass, would be rated as the next best materials.



73 L 42B 8.5 mg NEOPRENE 161 mg. 304 Sos, 168 mg 17-7 PH, SS. 5 mm x 30 mm 7000 PS16 8700 PS16 108 NEOPRENE 108 mg 17-7 PH, SS. 5 mm x 30 mm 8700 PS16 109 PS16 100 PS16 100

FICURE 23

PROMOTED IGNITION TEST, STAINLESS STEEL (ENLARGED PX)

82C 7.4 mg NEOPRENE 160 mg INCONSL X 750 5 ml X 30 mm 79 20 PSIG







FIGURE 24.

PROMOTED IGNITION TEST

INCONEL X-750 (ENLARGED 2X)

97A 11.3 mg, NSOPRENE N7 mg ANODIEED AL OM Angl COAT 5 min X 80 mm 8100 PSIG



97D 14.6 mg A'EOPRENE So mg ANODIZED AL 0.27 mil COAT Smu X 20 mm 7700 PSIG



81C 14 mg Ato MANE 203 mg ALUMANUM Simm X 20 mm 7850 7295



15.5 mg NEOPRENE 54 ang Ado DIZED Al 9.29 mil COAT 5 mar X 30 mm 7300 PSIG



FIGURE 25. PROMOTED IGNITION TEST, ALUMINUM (ENLARGED 2X)





FIGURE 26. PROMOTED IGNITION TEST COPPER AND LEAD (ENLARGED 2X)

90 E 11.8 mg NEOPRENE 177 mg YELLOW BRASS Smm X 30 mm 7325 PS16

90 D 13.2 mg NEOPRENE 166 mg YELLOW BRASS 7350 PSIG

FIGURE 27. PROMOTED IGNITION TEST BRASS (ENLARGED 2X)

152 mg NEOPRENE 160 mg YELLOW BRAKS Simm X 30 mm 7700 PSIG

92 C

-39-

el o A NEOPRENE INCONEL 600 5X30 7040 PSIG NEOPRENE 26C 99 D NEOPRENE INCONEL 600 13.2 mg INCONEL 162 XJ 370 PSIG PSI6 7**Q** 7

-

.

-

FIGURE 28. PROMOTED IGNITION TEST, INCONEL 600 (ENLARGED 2X)

NEO PRENE MONEL 230 7550 PSIG 17.6 17.3 NEOPRENE 180 mg MONEL San X 30 7600 PSIG

FIGURE 29. PROMOTED IGNITION TEST, MONEL 400 (ENLARGED 2X)

-41-



FIGURE 30. PROMOTED IGNITION TEST, NICKEL (ENLARGED 2X)

940 15.3 mg NEOPAENA 372 mg GOLD 5 mm X 30 mm 7400 PS16



46D 59 mg NEOPRENE 396 mg Gelb Same X 30 mm 7350 PS16



94 B 147 mg NeopRE & 229 mg SILME 5 mm X S 8300 FSIG









FIGURE 31. PROMOTED IGNITION TEST, GOLD AND SILVER (ENLARGED 2X)





-44-

d. Gold and silver might have applications in plating other metals. Their use would not present an ignition hazard.

e. Copper is not recommended because of other shortcomings. (1)

f. Of the materials tested, stainless steel and aluminum are the least satisfactory for use at oxygen pressures of 7500 psi.

Simulated System Tests

Purpose

The simulated system tests had three objectives:

1. To experimentally determine the hazards involved in charging a simulated system with 7500 psi oxygen.

2. To determine any electrostatic thange developed during charging of the simulated system.

3. To determine the flow rate at which a hazardous condition is approached.

Philosophy

The phylosophy used in constructing and testing the system was as follows:

1. Use the best possible materials as determined by previous test data.

2. Use equipment and arrange it in a manner which would best simulate an actual system.

3. Pressurize the system rapidly with oxygen to various pressure levels and measure the pressure rise by means of a pressure transducer and recorder. This information will permit calculation of flow rates.

4. By means of a probe and osc'lloscope, measure the electrostatic charge of the high pressure oxygen gas in the receiver as it is charged.

Materials of Construction and Arrangement of Equipment

The schematic of the test set up is shown in Figure 33. Figures 34 and 35 are pictorial presentations. The equipment, its mak rial of construction and the reason for its position are:

1. Storage Vessel

The storage vessel was used as a source of high pressure oxygen after it had been charged by the converter. It was used for two reasons:

a. As an intermediate vessel between the converter and the simulated system to isolate the converter in case of a mishap.



FIGURE 33. SCHEMATIC FOR SIMULATED SYSTEM TESTS



FIGURE 34. PICTURE OF SIMULATED SYSTEM TEST



FIGURE 35. VIEW OF GEMINI REGULATOR LOCATION IN SIMULATED SYSTEM

b. To warm up the oxygen by pressurization and provide gas at essentially ambient temperature.

The storage vessel had an internal geometric volume of 341 cubic inches, was constructed of 316 stainless steel and was rated at 15,000 psi. It was considered expendable in the event of a mishap. A 5/16-inch diameter hole through the head of the vessel was given a funnel-shaped, curved radius on the inside face of the head to facilitate gaseous flow.

2. Air-operated valve

The value body, removeable seat, stem, and packing washers were made from Monel 400 and Monel K-500. The packing was glass-filled TFE. The value contained 5/16-inch I.D. ports and was rated at 10,000 psi. It was actually necessary to use the value at higher pressures for these tests but because the tests were conducted in a high pressure area and the value had a built in safety factor we were able to do so. Values rated for higher pressures contained smaller port openings which would not have been as satisfactory for the tests.

The upstream port of the valve was placed in a direct line with the storage vessel and the downstream port was placed in a direct line with the receiver to provide the minimum resistance to gas flow.

3. Receiver

Because nickel was found to be the best material of construction, a nickel-lined stainless steel cylinder was purchased. The cylinder wall consisted of 0.20 inch of nickel and 0.30 inch of stainless steel. The cylinder was rated for 7500 psi. Internal geometric volume was 65 cubic inches. The receiver was placed in direct line with the air-operated value to minimize pressurization time.

4. Probe

A 1/8-inch nickel rod was selected for the electrostatic probe because of its resistance to ignition. It entered the receiver through an insulated fitting and was sealed with TFE packing. A nickel washer fastened to the rod on the inside prevented its being blown out by the combination of high pressure and the lubricity of the TFE.

5. 10.000 psi Pressure Transducer

The transducer was used to measure the pressurization time of the simulated system. Because it was made of stainless steel it was placed in a physical position to minimize its being impacted by any particles that might be in the system.

6. Regulator

Because we were trying to simulate a system, it was felt that a pressure regulator which is currently used in high pressure oxygen should be included.

The regulator used was identical to that which will be used in the Gemini capsule. The regulator is only used at 5000 psi in the Gemini capsule but is similar in construction to the regulator used in the Mercury capsule at 7500 psi. Aluminum was used for the body of the Mercury regulator while staimless steel is used for the body of the Gemini regulator.

The regulator contains a relief device on the downstream side to handle all the flow in the event of catastrophic failure in the regulator itself. The relief device limits pressure downstream to a maximum of 200 psi.

Elastomeric materials are used in the regulator for static and dynamic seals.

The regulator was placed in a position which was thought to be comparable to one that would be used in a system: not too far from the receiver but not in a jirect line with the charging line.

7. Valves, Fittings, and Tubing

All value bodies were Monel 400 but some of the value stems were Monel K-500 and some were 17-4 PH stainless steel. Likewise packing washers were either Monel 400 or stainless steel. Packing for the value stems wa: glassfilled TFE.

All fittings were Monel 400 except for two stainless sized tees to connect the 9/16" O.D. x 5/16" I.D. tubing. All tubing was also Monel 400.

8. Lubricants and Thread Sealants

TFE tape was used both as a lubricant and a sealant for pipe threads on both ends of the receiver and at the transducer because other materials were either considered to be unsuitable or sealing characteristics were unknown.

A thin film of fluorocarbon oil was used to lubricate the threads of the tubing, gland nuts and value stems. *dowever*, these points are not exposed to high pressure oxygen either because of weep holes or isolation by the value stem packing.

9. 10,000 psi Pressure Recorder

This recorder contained a stainless steel bourdon tube but shock effects on it were minimized by using 1/8-inch O.D. tubing to connect it to the system.

Procedure

The following steps were followed in making a simulated test:

1. High pressure oxygen from the warm converter was used to pressurize the storage vessel to the desired pressure.

2. Initially the receiver was successively pressurized and blown down several times with 2000 psi oxygen to be certain an oxygen atmosphere existed. This was also done with the Gemini regulator after the first series of tests. (For immediate succeeding tests, step 2 was eliminated.)

3. The blowdown values were closed and the air-operated value was opened.

4. The rate of pressure build-up was recorded on a Sanborn 150 recorder and any electrostatic charge developed was recorded photographically with an oscilloscope. A typical pressure profile is shown in Figure 36, and a typical photographic record of the electrostatic charge is shown in Figure 37.

5. The air-operated value was closed and the simulated system and the down stream side of the Gemini regulator were blown down.

6. The electrostatic probe was grounded for several minutes between tests to be certain there was no charge on it at the beginning of the next test.

7. Steps, 1, 3, 4, 5, and 6 were repeated for the next test.

8. Temperature of the gas in the storage vessel just prior to making a test was always between 10°C and 20°C.

7500 psi Tests

1. Results

a. The simulated system was pressurized with oxygen to instantaneous pressures ranging from 665 psi to 7100 psi without any mishaps. Pressurization time varied from 0.5 second to 0.21 second.

b. Ten pressurizations were made to instantaneous pressures of 7000 psi. Final pressures of 8000 psi were developed when the air-operated valve was left open and the receiver and storage v-ssel were permitted to equalize pressures over a period of a few minute. The gas in the storage vessel (initially at 12,000 psi) was cooled tremendously during pressurization of the simulated system. The temperature of the gas in the storage vessel was not measured but Byrnes, Reid and Ruccia (2) have shown that the temperature of a gas in a cylinder during depressurization may be lowered substantially.

c. Electrostatic charges measured varied from 0.0 volt to -0.32 volt.

d. Substituting thirty inches of 1/4-inch 0.D. x 0.083-inch I.D. tubing for the 9/16-inch 0.D. by 5/16-inch I.D. charging line between the airoperated value and the receiver did not increase the electrostatic charge developed. The pressurization time recorded for the receiver when 1/4-inch tubing wasused for the charging line is in error because of the position occupied by the transducer during these tests.

e. Temperature measurement of gas in the receiver during pressurization showed a maximum temperature rise of 80°C.



FIGURE 36. PRESSURE PROFILE OF SIMULATED SYSTEM TEST



FIGURE 37.

TYPICAL PHOTOGRAPHIC RECORD OF ELECTROSTATIC CHARGE DEVELOPED IN SIMULATED TEST f. Complete data may be found in Table 11 of Appendix IV.

2. Evaluation of Results

a. The fact that the simulated system was tested thoroughly without any malfunctions does not alter the fact that charging of a system of this type always carries with it the inherent hazards associated with high pressure gaseous oxygen nor does it imply that oxygen can be handled in the system with absolute safety.

b. Because there were no malfunctions, the flow approaching a hazardous condition cannot be defined.

c. There were no significant electrostatic charges developed during these tests. Therefore, it must be concluded that this does not represent a hazard in the upstem as it was tested. If the gas were to travel through lengthy lines before reaching the receiver, more of a charge might be developed.

d. A dip always occurred in the pressure profile (Figure 36) and correlated with a hissing sound from the test area. This was found to be due to the relief value opening on the downstream side of the Gemini regulator. Apparently because of the rapid pressurization, the downstream pressure exceeded 200 psi before the regulator could shut off the flow. This momentarily caused a dip in the pressure curve until the regulator started to control, then the relief value would close and the pressure in the system would rise. Of course this all happened in a small fraction of a second.

e. The Gemini regulator performed perfectly during all the tests. However, in view of the results of oxygen bomb tests and promoted ignition tests, some of its materials of construction are not recommended for 7500 psi oxygen service.

f. After one of the tests, the receiver started to leak around the threads where the fitting for the probe threaded into the receiver. It was thought that the TFE type might have partially ignited but when the fitting was removed it was not possible to determine that any ignition had taken place.

Evaluation of Hardware Used in the Experimental Program

Gemini Regulator

As previously mentioned this regulator performed perfectly but some of the materials of construction are not recommended for 7500 psi oxygen service.

High Pressure Valves

1. Serious galling occurred between the packing rings and the stem of the original Monel values (Figure 38 A, B, C, D, and F). These values were standard construction but custom-made. The difficulty was attributed to improper machining and surface finish of the parts, in well as tolerances which were too close. Reworking of the pieces provided better operation, but the problem was never completely eliminated. No doubt use of similar metals together contributed to the over-all galling problem.

2. The seating surfaces of the Monel K-500 stem and the Monel 400 body tended to gall so that it was necessary to tighten the value more and more to obtain a leak-tight seal. Finally it would be necessary to reface the seating surfaces of both the stem and the body. Figures 38 A, C, and D show galling as it occurred on the seating surface of the stem.

3. During the latter part of the program, 17-4PH stainless steel value stems were substituted for the Monel K-500 value stems in the Monel 400 bodies and stainless steel packing rings were substituted for Monel packing rings. This was done both to expedite test work and to permit some experience to be gained. The 17-4 PH value stems performed better mechanically than the Monel K-500 stems because the seating surface did not gall as severally. Both rotating stems and non-rotating stems were used. (See Figure 3). The non-rotating stem gives good leak-tight seals with no scoring of the seating surface but it gives very poor control over gas flow because of backlash.

4. Complete stainless steel valves (body and stem) were used at times to keep the test work going and to gain some experience with their use in high pressure oxygen.

5. On occasion, when a value was taken apart, there would be a slick dark film on the value stem below the bottom packing washer (Figure 38 E). This appeared to be TFE which had coated the stem as it was opened and closed. This represents a possible source of ignition and, because it is not confined, would be more likely to be exposed to ignition conditions.

5. In spite of the fact that no mishaps occurred, stainless steel values are the least satisfactory for use in 7500 psi oxygen service because of the low registance of stainless steel to ignition.

7. Considerable effort needs to be expended to design a high pressure valve from materials that are more compatible with high pressure oxygen but still will not gall.

Tubing Connection and Fittings

The mechanical connection shown in Figure 4 was used throughout the tests except in those places that required pipe connections. This is a standard high pressure connection and, although there are some problems associated with its use, in general it performed satisfactorily and provided leak-tight seals.

It is recommended that some consideration be given to a means of locking the gland nut in position after the fitting has been tightened. This would prevent loosening due to vibration.

For maximum safety, all welded connections are recommended.



FIGURE 38 HIGH PRESSURE VALVE STEMS



FIGURE 39. RUPTURED 10,000 PSI BURSTING DISCS

Miscellaneous

Four 10,000 psi safety discs were ruptured during the experimental test program. These are shown in Figure 39. These discs were fabricated from Monel alloy 400. The torn edges of these discs showed no evidence of ignition or combustion being caused by the rupture.

CONCLUSIONS

The following conclusions are based upon the results of the present experimental test program and other data referenced in this report.

1. The spontaneous ignition temperatures of the material: tested are essentially the same in 7500 psi oxygen as in 2000 psi oxygen.

2. The relative resistance of metals and alloys to ignition and combustion in 7500 psi oxygen agrees in general with results obtained in earlier Linde test work at 2000 psi and with the results of Dean and Thompson (3) except for aluminum.

3. Only three thread lubricants might have possible safe application in 7500 psi oxygen. These lubricants are Dixon's Flake Graphite No. 1, Burnil Brand Microplates, and Almasol Powder. Further information on their lubricating properties and thermal stability would need to be known before a complete recommendation could be made. One drawback to this type of lubricant is that there is always a possibility of particulate matter inadvertently getting into the high pressure system.

4. The only thread sealant tested in this program which might be recommended for 7500 psi oxygen service would be 50-50 soft solder (which could be used in tinning threads). TFE tape is not recommended because of the possibility of pieces getting into the gas stream.

5. Recognizing that some type of packing is needed for static and dynamic seals, glass-filled TFE would be the only material presently recommended for use Even its use presents a hazard and it should only be used when tightly confined.

6. Inconel alloy 600, brass, Monel alloy 400, and nickel are recommended for use in 7500 psi oxygen. Other metals might be acceptable if plated with nickel, silver, or gold. Monel alloy K-500 might also be acceptable but it was not given the promoted ignition test in 7500 psi oxygen.

7. Of the materials tested, stainless steel and aluminum are the least satisfactory for use at oxygen pressures of 7500 psi.

8. Copper is not recommended because of the results of Baum, Goobich, and Trainer (1). Other copper alloys might be acceptable material but would need to be tested.

9. Electrostatic charges developed during the charging of a small high pressure receiver were found to be negligible.

10. The simulated system was pressurized with oxygen to instantaneous pressures ranging from 665 psi to 7100 psi without incident. Pressurization time varied from 0.5 to 0.21 seconds.

The hazards considered to be most responsible for ignitions in oxygen systems are:

<u>a. Adiabatic Compression</u> - High temperatures may be produced when low pressure oxygen is suddenly brought to a high pressure, such as when a value is suddenly opened between a high pressure and a low pressure portion of the system. These temperatures can be high enough to ignite organic materials or small particles of metal.

<u>b.</u> Particulate Matter - Particles may be accelerated in a high velocity stream and impacted against organic materials or metallic burrs, projections, etc. Their energy is converted to high local temperatures by this impact with subsequent ignition of associated materials. Even the particles themselves might be ignited if they were either organic or metallic in nature.

These hazards may be substantially reduced by proper cleaning of the equipment initially, use of filters (especially ahead of regulators) minimum use of organic material, and judicious operation of valves and regulators to prevent rapid increases in pressure.

There are other mechanisms by which ignition may occur but these have been well covered by Reynales (13).

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Further study should be made on the copper alloys to define more clearly their compatibility and applicablility in 7500 psi systems.

2. More tesha would be conducted on metals and alloys to determine the effect of geometric configuration on the relative ignition temperatures.

3. There is need for further investigation into thread lubricants and thread sealants. This study would need to cover their physical properties such as lubrication and sealing qualities as well as their compatibility with oxygen. Development of special lubricants and sealants might be required.

4. A program is needed to develop and build better hardware constructed of materials more compatible with high pressure oxygen. The program should cover any and all equipment which would be used in a 7500 psi oxygen system.

REFERENCES

- (1) Baum, J. V., Goobich, B., and Trainer, T. M., <u>An Evaluation of High-Pressure Oxygen Systems</u>, AMRL Technical Documentary Report 62-102, Aerospace Medical Research Laboratories, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio, September 1962.
- (2) Byrnes, W. R., Reid, R. C., and Ruccia, F. E., <u>The Rapid</u> <u>Depressurization of a Gas Storage Cylinder</u>, Preprint No. 214, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambridge, Mass., 1963.
- (3) Dean, L. E., and Thompson, W. R., "Ignition Characteristics of Metals and Alloys," <u>Journal of the American Rocket Society</u>, <u>31</u> (7), 917-23, July 1961.
- (4) Gillerman, J. B., "Telescoped Testing of Environmental System Speeded Mercury Design," <u>Space/Aeronautics</u>, <u>35</u>/6-79, May 1961.
- (5) Greenspan, Lewis, "Ignition of Kel-F and Teflon," <u>Review of</u> <u>Scientific Instruments</u>, 29, 172-3, February 1958.
- (6) Grosse. A. V., and Conway, J. B., "Combustion of Metals in Oxygen," <u>Industrial and Engineering Chemistry</u>, <u>50</u> (4), 663-672, April 1958.
- Hersey, M. D., "Study of the Oxygen-Oil Explosion Hazard,"
 <u>Am. Soc. Naval Engineers</u>, <u>36</u>, 231-243, 1924.
- (8) Hersey, M. D., <u>Oxygen Oil Explosions</u>, Department of Interior, Bureau of Mines, Preliminary Reports 1, 2, and 3, U. S. Bureau of Mines, Washington, D.C., July 1923.
- (9) Hill, P., Adamson, D., Foland, D., and Brissette, W., <u>High</u> <u>Temperature Oxidation and Ignition of Metals</u>, NACA, R. M. L55L23b, National Advisory Committee for Aeronautics, Langley Research Center, Langley Field, Va., March, 1956.
- (10) Markstein, G. H., "Combustion of Metals, <u>AIAA Journal, 1</u>
 (3), 550-562, March 1963.
- (11) Reynales, C. H., <u>Compatibility of Materials with Oxygen</u>, Report No. D81-444, Douglas Aircraft Company, Inc., Long Beach, Calif., Oct. 1, 1958.
- (12) Reynales, C. E., "Selection of Lubricants and Thread Compounds for Oxygen Missile Systems," <u>Advances in Cryogenic Engineering</u>, Pages 117-129, Vol.6, K. D. Timmerhaus, Ed., Plenum Press. 1961, New York.

REFERENCES (Continued)

- (13) Reynales, C. H., <u>Safety Aspects in the Design and Operation of</u> <u>Oxygen Systems</u>, Engineering Paper No. 7/1, Douglas Aircraft Co., Inc., Santa Monica, Calif., 1959.
- (14) Reynolds, W. C., <u>Investigation of Ignition Temperatures of Solid</u> <u>Metals</u>, NASA Technical Note D-182, National Aeronautics and Space Administration, Washington, D.C., October, 1959.
- (15) Richl, W. A., Key, C. F., and Gayle, J. B., <u>Reactivity of Titanium</u> with Oxygen, NASA Technical Report R-180, National Aeronautics and Space Administration, Washington, D. C., 1963.
- (16) Smeltzer, W. W., and Perrow, J. M., "Oxidation of Metals," <u>Industrial</u> <u>and Engineering Chemistry</u>, <u>53</u> (4), 319-324, April 1961.
- (17) Watkins, H. D., "Basic Gemini ECS Keyed to 14-day Flight," <u>Avia-</u> <u>tion Week and Space Technology</u>, <u>79</u>, 52-69, August 19, 1963.

APPENDIX I

CALCULATION OF THEORETICAL TEMPERATURE ATTAINED BY ADIABATIC COMPRESSION

The theoretical temperature attained by adiabatic compression was calculated using the expression:

$$\frac{T_2}{T_1} = \left(\frac{P_2}{P_1}\right)^{\frac{n-1}{n}} \quad \text{where } n = \frac{C_p}{C_v}$$

substituting for n, we obtain:

-

$$\frac{T_2}{T_1} = \left(\frac{P_2}{P_1}\right)^{\frac{1.4-1}{1.4}} = \left(\frac{P_2}{P_1}\right)^{0.286}$$

Using an initial pressure of 14.7 psia and an initial temperature of 293°K:

$$T_2 = 293 \left(\frac{P_2}{14.7}\right)^{0.286}$$

This equation was solved for various pressures to obtain the theoretical temperature rise. These are presented in Table 5 and Figure 40.

TABLE 5

THEORETICAL TEMPERATURE ATTAINED BY ADIABATIC COMPRESSION

CALCULATED FROM THE EXPRESSION
$$\frac{T_2}{T_1} = \left(\frac{P_2}{P_1}\right)^n$$

P ₂ , psia	Temperature		
	T ₂ , *K	T ₂ , °C	
100	506	233	
200	622	349	
400	761	488	
800	922	649	
1,200	1036	763	
1,600	1122	849	
2,000	1199	926	
2,400	1266	993	
2,800	1313	1040	
3,200	1363	1090	
4,000	1455	1182	
5,000	1561	1288	
6,000	1639	1366	
7,000	1711	1438	
7,500	1750	1477	
10,000	1900	1627	
15,000	2123	1850	



FIGURE 40. THEORETICAL TEMPERATURE ATTAINED BY ADIABATIC COMPRESSION

APPENDIX II

CALCULATION OF COMPRESSIBILITY FACTORS FOR OXYGEN

The compressibility factor (Z) for oxygen was calculated for various pressures using charts⁽¹⁾ which comprised a series of lines representing compressibility factor, $Z = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{PV}{P_0 V_0} \end{bmatrix}_T = \text{const.}$, plotted against reduced pressure, $P_r = \frac{P}{P_c}$, for different values of reduced temperature, $T_r = \frac{T}{T_c}$

The pressures and compressibility factor for each are presented in Table 6 and Figure 41 for $T_r = 1.9$.

TABLE 6

COMPRESSIBILITY FACTOR FOR OXYGEN AT VARIOUS PRESSURES

P, psia	P _R	Z
200	0.271	0.995
400	0.543	0.99
600	0.815	0.985
800	1.08	0.97
1,000	1.36	0.965
1,200	1.63	0.955
1,400	1.90	0.95
1,600	2.17	0.942
2,000	2.71	0.938
2,400	3,26	0.935
2,800	3,80	0.938
3,200	4.35	0.945
4,000	5.42	0.97
5,000	6.78	1.02
6.000	8.15	1.07
7.000	9,50	1.125
8,000	10.85	1.193
9.000	12.20	1.272
10,000	13.58	1.35
11.000	14.92	1.42
12,000	16.30	1.49
13,000	17.65	1.56
14,000	19.0	1.63
15,000	20.4	1.71
16,000	21.7	1.78
17.000	23.1	1.85
18,000	24.4	1.92
19,000	25.8	1.99
20,000	27.2	2.06

 "Compressibility Charts and Their Application to Problems Involving Pressure-Volume-Energy Relation for Real Gases" - Research Bulletin P-7637, Worthington Corporation, Harrison, New Jersey (1952)



FIGURE 41. COMPRESSIBILITY FACTOR FOR OXYGEN AT 293°K

i I

APPENDIX III

ADIABATIC COMPRESSION - A CONTROLLED IGNITION MECHANISM

Compression Apparatus

The envisioned apparatus as shown in Fig. 42 was considered equivalent to the model of Fig. 43 where the advancing high pressure

gas front is equivalent to a piston moving at the velocity of sound (C_0) . In this case a shock wave advances into the gas at rest at a velocity (VW) greater than the velocity of the piston (V_p). The values for these velocities and resulting pressure and temperature rise behind the shock wave can be calculated.





When the shock wave preceeding the piston reaches the wall at the end of the tube it is reflected giving rise to further compression.

$$\frac{1 \text{ st Shock}}{V_{W}} = \frac{1}{2} \frac{V_{p}}{1 - \mu^{2}} + C_{o}^{2} + \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{V_{p}}{1 - \mu^{2}}\right)$$
(1) (Ref. 1)

where:

$$\mu^2 = \frac{k-1}{k+1}$$

for $V_p = C_o$ and representative values of K = 1.4 and $C_o = 1130$ ft./sec.

$$V_W = 1990 \text{ ft./sec.}$$

 $M_O = \frac{V_W}{C_O} = 1.76$ (2)

Ref. 1: R. Courant, K. O. Friedricks - <u>Supersonic Flow and Shock Waves</u> Interscience Publishers Inc., 1948.
$$\frac{P_1}{P_0} = (1 + \mu^2) M_0^2 - \mu^2 = 3.494$$
(3)

$$\frac{\rho_1}{\rho_0} = \frac{P_1 + \mu^2 P_0}{P_0 + \mu^2 P_1} = 2.3$$
(4)

$$\frac{T_{1}}{T_{0}} = \frac{P_{1}}{P_{0}} \frac{\rho_{0}}{\rho_{1}} = 1.52$$
 (5)

from (5) $T_1 = 1.52 (530 \,^{\circ}\text{R}) = 805 \,^{\circ}\text{R}$

2nd Shock

$$\frac{P_{1}}{P_{1}} = \frac{\left(2\mu^{2}+1\right)}{\mu^{2}} \frac{P_{1}}{P_{0}} + 1} = 5.06$$
(6)

and from expressions similar to (4) and (5)

 $T_2 = 1430 \ ^{\circ}R$

The conclusion is that in the assumed model a series of shock reflections will rapidly tend to build up pressures and corresponding high temperatures in the tube. Actually friction effects would tend to dampen the shock waves fairly soon.

To determine how clearly the above model can be simulated tests were run on the quick-opening valve. The observed results are indicated below.

Preliminary Tests with "Quick Opening" Valve

Measurements made of the rate of pressure build-up in the actual tube indicates flow velocities substantially below sonic so that the actual mechanism of compression cannot utilize the idealized piston described above. Valve opening time - 0.5 sec.

Pressure build-up to 2000 psi in 20 in. long 5/16 in diameter tube takes - 0.05 sec.

The rate of pressure build-up is nearly linear and approximately proportional to the length of test section.

In this instance, the mechanism of pressure build-up involves mixing of the gas at rest in the tube and the inrushing gas.

In view of the fact that a high degree of mixing takes place the anticipated temperature rise becomes uncertain and of questionable reproducibility.

Comparison of Gas Heat Capacity to Heat Loss to Surroundings

In this case a control volume of 1.07 $\,\times\,10^{-3}$ ft. 3 was taken representing a tube 5/16 in. I. D. and 24 in. long. then Q = V $_{\rm P}$ C $_{\rm p}$

(7)

= 1.07×10^{-3} (.089) .3 = .29 x 10⁻⁴ Btu/°F

The heat transfer from the tube can be expressed as:

$$dQ = h A \Delta T dt$$
 (8)

where both the heat transfer area (A) and the temperature gradient are time dependent.

then:
$$Q = \int_{0}^{t} h A(t) \Delta T(t) dt$$
 (9)

From thermodynamic considerations an expression for ΔT was derived as follows:

$$\frac{T_2}{T_1} = \left(\frac{V_1}{V_2}\right)^{k-1}$$
(10)

$$\Delta T = T_2 - T_1 = T_1 [(\frac{V_1}{V_2})^{k-1} - 1]$$
(11)

since:

$$V_2 = V_1 - AX \tag{12}$$

where $X = \frac{dX}{dt} t$ and letting $\frac{dX}{dt} = K$

$$V_2 = V_1 - AKt \tag{13}$$

Substituting (13) in (11) and simplifying:

$$\Delta T = T_{1} \left[\left(\frac{\rho}{\rho - kt} \right)^{k-1} - 1 \right]$$
 (14)

The heat transfer area made up of the tube ends and the varying surface area is expressed as:

$$A = 2 \frac{\pi}{4} d^{2} + \pi d (\rho - x)$$

= $2 \frac{\pi}{4} d^{2} + \pi d (\rho - kt)$ (15)

Substituting (14) and (15) in (9) and simplifying the heat transfer to the surroundings is expressed as:

$$Q = h T_{1} \frac{\pi d^{2} (k-1)}{2k (2-k)} [1^{2-k} - (1-kt)^{2-k}] + \frac{\pi d 1}{(3-k) k} [1^{3-k} - (1-kt)^{3-k}] - \frac{\pi}{2} d^{2} t - \pi d (1 t - \frac{k}{2} t^{2})$$
(16)

for the representative values of:

d	H	$\frac{.31}{12}$ = .026 ft.
1	-	2
t	=	.04 sec.
k	=	25 ft./sec.
T	=	530 °R
Q	8	.06 Btu

This heat loss to the surroundings is too large compared to the heat capacity of the gas to maintain adiabatic conditions during compression.

APPENDIX IV.

TABLES OF EXPERIMENTAL DATA

-67-

TABLE 7

.

7

SUMMAY OF PALLIDGHAY RICH PALSURG OFYGAN AGA TASTS And contriation with 2000 for fainty and tasts and links standard 2000 for officer aga tasts

					5							SUD LY IN	I DATA		
											DE MILIOION			ADDATE STATEA	. 1000 91
		Notes	Sample veight in gram	Ignition temp. °C	Ign it ion pressure ps i	Temp. rise on ignition C	Preseure rise on ignition pei	Average ht's rate °C/ein during last 20 fin	Teat date 1963	Sample Valght In gran	lgnition temp. °C	Ignition pressure pei	Average ht's rate -C/min.	Ignition temp.	Ignítion pressure psí
10-11 10-13	brebla Gallu 9914-140 9914-140 9914-144 9914-144		1.0	81 81 81	2300 2500 8100	2 2 2	8 <u>8</u> 8	0.4.4 0.4.4	88888888 97771 47771	1.00	52832 <u>8</u> 3	2275 2200 2230 2230 2230 2230 2230 2230		59	1300
		11111 6 120303 6 6 6 885		tti tti tti tti tti tti tti tti tti tti	2200 2100 2170 2550 5550 7200 7200 7200 6450 6450 6450 6450 6450 6000 8000 8000 8000 8000 8000 8000 80					0.000	1585181	2280 2166 22060 22060 22000 22000 22000 22000		No arplosi and 2000 p	an at 410°C
	Pit-INC Pit-INC Trianal Par		0.1	89 89	2220 8600	89	2ĝ	7.2 8.8	 	0.1 0.1 0.3		2228 2228 2128 2128	~• ²	9	2250
3	Jatint		0.1	¥. :		n :	90	:		0.1	85 <u>58</u>	2400	4	56 170	2150

-68-

٩

TABLE 8

STANDARY OF MUSICING CONTRACT AND DATE TO TAND

Average ht's rate 'C/min. during last 20 min.	8.8 5.9 5.9	1.8.7.8 1.8.7.8 1.8.7.0		5.2 5.1 6.6		8.9 5.9 5.9 5.9	۵. ۵. ۵. ۵. ۵. ۵. ۵.
Voltage setting on furnace variac	* 8 8		8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	56 56 5 5 5 5 5 5	828 223	85555	****
Laitial orygan press. in bomb before ht'g	000 000 1900	5150 5750 11750 11000	4850 4850 5150 1930	4400 44600 5226 1400	888 898 898 898 898	5158 1858 1878 258	400 5000 5150
Presente rise on ignition pei	8 8 8 8 8	891 880 890 890	898 1500 1511	8 8 8 8	<u> </u>	88888	<u>8888</u>
Teng. rise on ignition °C	828	817 8	2128	• 00 26	== <u>8</u> 228	3 - 7 2 3	9 4 4 9
Ignition pressure pei	7600 2300 2300	7550 8100 2300 2400	7870 7150 2650	0047 0150 0218 0218	7650 7200 2200 7600 2350	800 2500 100 100	, , 200 1200 2500 2500
lgnittion temp "C	5 5 5 5 5 5	355 376 385	474 471 465 469	414 412 410 410	335 SEX	8853 8	perce Corp. arocarbon Company 413 448 445 415
	0.1 0.12 0.11	0.15 0.14 0.13	0.1 0.2 0.2	1.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	1.0000	rod from Adua 5; " sheet from Flux 0.15 0.13 0.11 0.11
Rotes	Le t lon		(leak)	(leek)	(leek)	88888	(1) 1/6" (2) 1/16 (1eak)
Sample material and test No.	Ome ld Anti-Fri Someoued Ho. <u>24</u> 9914-208 9914-238	Arceler 1254 9914-208 9914-200 9914-218 9914-216 9914-216	<u>Vitein Telion</u> 9914-228 9914-228 9914-22C 9914-23A	Teflen 100X 9914-24 A 9914-248 9914-24C 9914-25A	Fal-7 5500 9914-2518 9914-250 9914-250 9914-26A 9914-266 9914-266	K41-F_81 9914-260 9914-278 9914-275 9914-275	Fel-7 90 Greate 9914-270 9914-300 9914-300 9914-300
Teat date 1963	10/23 10/25 10/25	10/23 10/23 10/24 10/24	10/25 10/25 10/25 10/25	10/30 10/30 10/30	16/01 16/01 16/01 16/01	11/11 1/11 1/11 1/11	211 211 211 211 211 211 211 211 211 211

e-je-r

٩

_	
(p, juo;	
8	
ABLE	2012
Η	8

A Contraction of the

11511	
89	
155002	
0	
Non	

Average Rt'g rate °C/min during	last 20 min. 5.5) 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	ν. Α. Φ. Φ. Φ. Φ. Φ.	0.0 9.9 9.9 9.9 9.9 9.9 9.9 9.9 9.9 9.9	9 4 9 9 . 9	5.5 6.5 6.5	5.7		
Voltage setting om furbace variac	23	2 6 6 6 2 5 0 6	2 a 2	8888	233	222	222	***	222
Initial orygen press. in bomb before by'g	- 21	805 805 805	1900 4850 ht fumes were	4400 5000 1850 4900	5000 5300 1900	4900 5200 1900	4900 4130 1130	\$ 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	5000 4130 1800
Fressure rise on ignition psi	1.00	8	 B on charts- slig	88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 88888 8888	<u>8</u> 88	888 888	893 893 893	2000 2000 2000	1200 1200 250
Temp. rise on ignition °C		~::	 Indication of ignitio	12 2 2 2	0 4 1 120 103	12 12	228	3 53	228
- Lanition preserve pei	8300 6100	2550 6000 8200	2900 7500 of ignition, but mo	7000 7650 7700	7000	7300 8100 2450 t when couched	8000 7450 2450	805 0 7000 2300	7350 7900 2650
Ignition temp °C	M.E. 500 411	419 4.E. 500 4.E. 500	H.E.450 H.E.440 Ppered and evidence temperature	555 555	270 267 277	400 470 448 448 tt collapsed to due	333	1 99	55
Bample veight in grams	0.1 0.22	k) 0.15 0.16 0.16	0.1 0.3 iample had disa iassembled. iassembled.	0.12	0.13 0.12 0.11	0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 10, M	0.2 0.2 0.2 • Initial ••••••	0.2	0.2
Notes	28 (1) (2)	0 (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5)	(1) (2) (2) (3) disessembled, a ced when bomb di ann no explosio of aram of	10-10 (100k)		(1) He shape as talt		(lesk)	(Iask)
Sample mterial and.test No.	<u>Hish Purity Go</u> 9914-28A 9914-28B	9914-28C 9914-28D 9914-30D	9914-318 9914-318 (1) When bomb also notio (2) M. E metione (3) A residue	Malocarbon Gre. 9914-29A 9914-29B 9914-29C 9914-29C 9914-29D	914-310 914-310 914-310 914-320	9914-320 9914-320 9914-320 9914-334 (1) Ameldue ann	Burold 5450 9914-335 9914-330 (1) Milte reeld	Durole 3411 9914-344 9914-348 9914-346 Durold 3470	855-9166 855-9166
Te t 4 a t 1963	5/11 2/11 2/11	2 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1	11/8	11/6 11/6 11/6	9/11 9/11		11/12 11/12	(1/11 (1/11 (1/11	11/11 11/11 11/11

M.E. - means no explosion at the indicated temperature.

f

TABLE 8 (Cont'd)

.

. -----

SUMMAX OF RUM PRESENT OF THE PARTY

Average ht'g rate °C/min during laat 20 min.	6.1 6.8 6.8	3.8	5.9 6.3 7.0	7.3 7.0	4.6 6.3 6.0	5 8 6 0 5 8 6 0	700 804.8
Voltage setting on furmace variar	228	8 8 8	9 9 9 9 9 9	88 88	95 92 88	855	828 235 2
aitisi aygan press. a bomb efore ht'g	0041	48% 1980 1980	4600 4750 1900	4800 1850 6000	4800 4800 1700	5600 1760 4700	4900 1900 4800 1700
Pressure Tiss on Lignition	888	\$ \$\$	82 28 82 88	8 8 8 8 8 8	84 - 18 9094		888 888
Rump. rise on ignition °C	282	នួនន	15 25 25	220 240 175	ន ៉េនន រួ រូ		788 54A
Ignition pressure pei	7266 7766 2666	7900 7400 2600	7300 7730 2600	6200 2336 8700	7700 7800 7800 2400 2400 2400 841 on the recorder	9200 2400 8000 8000	7200 2400 7000 7000 7000 2330
Ignition teep. *C	333	333	465 471 438	216 250 254	442 442 435 427 427 427 427 427 427 424 427 424 424	N.E.500 M.E.500 M.E.500 M.E.500 Weder into test tab the bomb was disea	916 916 915 915 915
	0.2 0.2 0.2	0.2 0.2 0.2	0.2 0.2 0.2	(Dr 1ed) 0.21 0.20 0.20	0.17 0.11 0.18 0.18 0.18 d vithout any ind	0.08 0.09 0.2 more weight of pe till intect when	0.11 0.12 0.12 0.11 0.11
Potes	(Joit)			Lubricent No. 811 (Pouder) (1/16" chunka) (1/16" chunka)	e 13-21 (1) (1) Sample ignite	stat (2)(Fowder) (2)(Powder) (2)(Paper) (2)(Paper) All samples vere s	
Rample material and Toot No.	<u>Pulca A</u> 9914-35C 9914-35D 9914-35A	<u>Bulon B</u> 9914-368 9914-360 9914-360	<mark>Juloa C</mark> 9914-37A 9914-37B 9914-37C	<u>rerlube folid file</u> 9914-37D 9914-38A 9914-38B	nicearben <u>011 faria</u> 9914-380 9914-380 9914-398	<u>ығыл Бғала Містор</u> і 9914-395 (1) 9914-390 (1) 9914-40 A (1) (2)	<u>iten A (Virala)</u> 9914-408 9914-408 9914-408 9914-418 9914-418 9914-418
Ter 1965 1965	51/11 51/11	11/11 11/11	61/11 61/11	11/19 11/19 11/20	11/20 11/20 11/20 11/20	11/21 11/21 11/21	11/22 11/22 11/22 11/22 11/22

H.E. - means no explosion at the indicated temperature.

٩

f

-71-

Ъ
•
.
_
Ö
Ó
Ŭ
8
ы
L.
2
<
H

We can see the second of a state of the second

- -

SUMMAT OF MICH PLASSING OFFICE POR TESTS

	Reepte Material and:Teet No.	Notes	Sample veight In grame	Ignition temp. °C	Ignition pressure	Temp. rise on ignition °C	Pressure rise on ignition pei	Initial orygen presa. in bomb before ht'g	Voltage eetting on furnace variac	Average ht's rate °C/min during
70/11	Mano. 7 has and Joint	Comparing								last 20 min
11/26	11-42A	33	0.17	H, E. 500	8150	:	:	4950		
11/26	9914-A7B	23	17.0	776	1700	12	001	000		
11/27	9914-420	20	0.0	174	2000	10	10	22		
					2000	16	25	1850		
			s may be partly decomp a sintered	oeed. Color changed	from dark to light	gray.			•	2
	Pirce's Fiabs Granh	ite No.1								
11/27	V(1-1166		0.23	25°2'1	1000					
11/27	9914-438		0.24	N.E. 500		:	:	45 50	95	3.5
11/27	D14-43C		0.23	N.E. 500	2200	: :	:	4650	• •	2.0
	Printe No. 703 (Dr.	(per					•	20002	3	6.0
12/2	017-7166	Э	0.15	H. E. 500						
12/2	11-116	3	0.23		33	•	;	4900		5.0
12/2	111-1166	3	0.20		0047		:	1700	2	0.4
12/4	9914-458	(() (3)	timted vt.0.5+			; :	:	4650	92	0.0
12/4	9914-450	(3)(5)	0.22	N. E. SOO		â	ŝ	4700	95	1.1
12/4	87-18	(2)(5)	0.21	M. E. 310		ł	•	5150		4.0
/21	494-9166	(2)(3)	0.53	82			: :	4900	9 5	7.2
[1/2]	015-7166	(0) (3)	0.40	236	2200	3 3	g a	0067	5	6 .0
				1	1	ž	2	1800	2	8.0
			tested as chuck; some	oxidation on outside	of chunk evidenced	by wellow color				
			powdered in mortar and	d tested in powdered a	tate.					
			composed of small pist	tes and powder as pre-	ent in original dri	led sample.				
		(C)	fatet an discolorary		tion on bottom of a	wanple evidenced by	yellow color.			
			cempletely disappears	I. Bomb thoroughly pu	atmetre. Med with combustic	m stoducts and cor				
	Gereel (dr. Led)									
	941-44C	33	0.15	22	2900	131	ş		;	
		e 83	•k) 0.20	Ŧ	0049	3	35		2 8	7.4
		e	0.20	97	2700	160	2	2002	28	
		(I) Reough	best was liberated to	and the bottom of th	be pyrex test tube.				2	
2	Smild Act-Prictics	Compared No.	J							
	V/7-V166	3	0.22	N.R. 500	0200					
12/4	14-414A	8	0.21	H.E.400	0008	:				5.0
12/8			0.80	414	6700	\$	1600			0.0
12/8	99 14-472		0.74	410	7400	Bursting Disc B.	ptured			0.0
		(1) Semie			2300	6 5	1000	0041		
		: : : :	writig decomposed, but	mostly intert.	ż				•	

H.E. - mean no explosion at the indicated temperature.

Low down of the set of the set

A COMPANY AND A COMPANY

•

				TAI	BLE 8 (Cont'd	(F				
				SUMMAY OF	MICH PRESURE OUN	UTIL BOR II				
Test date 1963	Seeple Matarial and toat No.	Notes	Bampie weight in grame	Ignition temp. °C	lgnition pressure pei	Temp. rise an ignition °C	Pressure tise ou ignition pei	laitial orygen press. in bomb before ht'g	Vultage setting on furmer variat	Average ht's rate °C/min during last 20min
12/10 12/10 12/10	Rectoresel No. 15 9914-464 9914-485 9914-485	(Drted) ML-T-55	1428 (ASC) 0.28 0.18 0.16	35 25	7700 6800 2500	382 2	2500 1000 400	4900 2000 2000	222	
12/10 12/10 12/10	<mark>20/50_50(t 30]44T</mark> 9914-48D 9914-498 9914-498	383	0.6 0.5 0.5	N.E. 500 N.E. 500 N.E. 500	7500 2600 2600	:::	:::	4700 4800 1900	* <u>8 8</u>	3.4 5.0 6.3
		(1) Solder m	rlted and a cont	liderable amount of on	ride formed.	•				
12/11 12/11 12/11	Almatel Forder (J. 9914-490 9914-490 9914-490	25 Mark) (1) (1) (104k) (1)	0.10 0.14 0.15	¥E. 500 N.E. 500 N.E. 500	8000 2900 2900	:::	:::	4600 4600 2010	888	7.8 6.0 5.5
12/11 12/12	Kay Absoluts (Drts <u>9914-497</u> 9914-50A 9914-50B	(1) Jamp le Ini ed) MIL-T-5542-1 (1)	tact. No evider (ASG) 0.12 0.56 0.75	oce of oxidation. N.E.500 342 355	7300 660 2500] 3 3	1200	45 <i>5</i> 6 4300 1900	98 98 98	3.0 6.1 5.8
12/12 21/21	<u>Mich Duricv Goor</u> 9914-50C 9914-51A	(1) Bample dack (2) Bursting di (1)	dec ruptured. 0.51 0.50	M.E.420 M.E.420 398	8500 2800		8	5100 1900 1900	95 95	0.4 5.0
61/51 61/51	<u>Heoprene O-Rins</u> (9914-518 9914-51C	NI) Decomposition	II, Class I) 0.11 0.05	200 190	2500	175	200 200	2000	56	7.4
12/5 12/5 12/5	Linde Green Fibe 9914-468 9914-460 9914-460	Composite	0.26 0.52 0.31	373 362 356	7450 6900 2350	183	250 600 200	4650 4500 1750	222 222	4.7

M.E. - means no explosion at the indicated temperature.

۴

المعاطفة بقعامينا سنقلا

ないのないというなどのないないないないで、「ない」

TABLE 9 Milidimit Maa - Mondre leititoi Thee

original shape complete combustion Complete combustion Complete combustion Oring hard but original shape Ignition occurred as oxygen Ignition occurred as oxygen Homel malted isto ball and oxidized on outer surface. Morel malted isto ball and oxidized on outer surface. Morel malted isto ball and oxidized on outer surface. Memoi mited, sight oridation. Memoi multed, partly oridized. Memoi multed memo and surface cristiand. Complete combustion. Bilver welted, slight oxidation Cold melted into ball, no oxidation. vith Beopress. Complete combustion. Slight oxidation of stainless Slight oxidation to ignition of stainless steel Oxidation of metal in contact Oring charred and hard but Blight oxidation so ignition of stainless steel Blight exidetion no ignition of steinless steel Complete combustion. Stainless steel oxidized but did not burn. Stalaless steel azidized but did not burn. tainless steel oxidized but Stainless steel outdined but did not burn. ********************** ********************* Momel melted and surface tonel melted and purface Lencks Complete combustion Complete combustion lid not burn. put det i on buide tion atee) Apprezimente specimen sise width z length • × 20 8 x 20 6 × 15 7 × 9 9 × 9 **** е ж 9 8 × 9 6 е е в н н м е е 8 × 9 7 × 0 5 x 8 7 = 8 7 × 8 7 × 7 2 -----7 = 7 8 H C ** 7 × 8 7 × 8 8 × 6 * Igmition pressure paig. f 8888 8 88528 1950 80 2000 2250 200 2020 2000 2100 2200 2000 8 8 8 88 82 lenition temp. *C 200 325 8.8.220 8.8.350 H.E.340 198 3 35 333 30 38 3553 315 2 23 ž 22 22 1 378 222 23 33 Physical configuration Spectara Vi. M. 3 2222 22 3 \$ 11 3 3 32 :::\$ 35 \$ 3 \$ 33 * 5 3 828 22 8 Btainless Bteel Type 304 Btainless Bteel Type 304 Monel Nonel Stainless Steel Type 304 Stainless Steel Type 304 Itelalese Steel Type 304 ž ž ğ Stainless Steel Type 304 Stainless Steel Type 304 Steel Type JOA Statalone Steel Type 304 Statalone Steel Type 304 Statalous Stoel Type 304 Statalous Steel Type 304 Stainless Steel Type 304 Statalone Steel Type 304 Bialaless Biesl Type Bialaless Biesl Type Statalose Steel Type Specimen Itainless Silver Cold None J - Tenor Kone 1 fore l fone l ĪĪĪ -: Promoter Vi. mg. 2222 5 \$ 33 \$22 3 5 33 83.4.4 ~ 2 \$ 23 22 21 1 3 *5 828 1 Neoprene Promoter 4 Viton 411.00 411.00 411.00 Viton : : 1 1 * * * 1 1 : : 8 9914-59C 9914-59D 9914-60A 219-9166 819-9166 9914-62A 9914-62B 1(1-1)66 7(1-1)66 7(1-1)66 **9914-59A** 9914-59B 109-9164 311-66 P914-60C 9914-600 19-11-610 029-9166 759-7166 19-116 19-116 914-640 914-640 914-674 9914-630 P14-64A 914-650 914-65 914-650 14-673 Ter. 1951 An Ci 3 1-10 91-1 9-1 1111 1-13 1-13 n-1 <u>...</u> 211 1-6 1-6 1-13 1 111 -11 1111 : 1

-74-

TABLE 10 Proprise control rest

Remarks	Nomel melted into ball.	Complete combustion	Complete combustion	Nomel welted and oxidized.	Complete combustion	Nonel melted and oxidized.	Complete combustion	Nonel pertly oxidized, not melted	Complete combustion	Gold milted at bottom where	promoter contacted it.	Complete combustion	Orthe origination of stainless steel.	Nomel weited at bottom and	oridized 1/2 way up.	Nomel melted at bottom and aide.	Brain]ann amidiand hur did ann		Oxidiand, started to melt one	cormer.	Stalaiese oxidisfe, but did bot burn.	13 m burned 16 m remind	Complete combustion.	Complete combustion.	Oridised 5 mm from bottom but	did mot burn.	Complete comparison.	Cald average and the d	Com lete commetton.	Oridation laside and out where	moprese touched. Male burned	through sichel.	Bottam 3 of 4 mm melted with	berem 2 or 3 m mited with	light mutiace axidation.	Light oridation of botton	Light yellow oxidation lower 1/3			state antidation. Batton corner	mitted.	Complete combustion.	Pertial combustion 16 mm langth 1.40	Merr oridition at bottom of	specimen but did not ignite.
Specimen aire width x length	5 × 10	5 × 10	5 × 10	5 m 10	5 × 20	5 × 10	5 x 10	5 # 10	5 x 10	5 m 10		0 × 0	01 × 0	5 x 18		5 × 20	5 e 10		5 # 7		01 # 0	5 x 29	5 × 10	5 x 16	5 × 10					2			0 H 2	97 - 7		5 × 30	2 × 8					5 # 1Ü	5 x X0	5 x 20	}
lgnition pressure psig.	0067	6000	8000	7500	6730	6700	7400	7450	7400	7400		2007	8	7000		7200	7450	2 1 1	5650		1100	7850	7450	7400	7250		80.2		2002	0512			6800	4600		6600	\$ 200		2		A	1300	7600	7400	•
Ignition temp. °C	345	194	310	ຄ	189	190	169	190	190	189		261	Ne7 . 4 . 1	190		161	316		191	2	805	184	186	185	3	3		2					190	1.00		185	104		190	241	3	185	178	1AS	ł
Physical configuration	U	υ	U	v	U	v	U	0	U ·	U	ſ	5	J	U		υ	ų	,	U	ſ	U	•	U	υ	U	1	b , (• •	•		₽.		•	•	•		:	; .	,	U	•	Þ	ŀ
Spectmu Vt. M.	67	51	51	8	22	2	2.	2	49	128		89	2	86		3		•	41	9	43	158	8	102	47		021	81	8 3	150	ì		62	140		51	160			::	6	28	9	104	1
Spec faen	None 1	Stainless Steel Type 304	Stainless Steel Type 304	None (Stainless Steel Type 304	None!	Stainless Steel Type 304	Nobel 6. 6. 6. 1 - 50.	Stainless Steel Type 304	60 Id		statutes steel lype Jun	and adde table statements	Nicos 1		None 1	Stateless Steel Tree 306		None 1		stainiess steel type you	Nonel	Notae 1	Mone 1	Statuless Steel Type 304		Stalaless Steel Type 304	STAIDIESE SEGEL TYPE JUN	trialous traal Twee NG	Michel			Michel	listen)		Hicks!	Michal					lines!	Mone 1	Statelane Steel True 306	
Neoprene wt. mg.	5	# 1	22	2	5:	2:	2:	2,2	•••	0.1		, «		14.5		14.4	2.5		14.0			17.2	17.6	17.9	7.8					10.0			•	17.6		24.0	7.16					17.0	17.3	6.8	1 •
Test No.	9914-67C	9914-67D	6914-68A	889-9166	14-9166	9914-550	869-5166	160-51 66 160-51 66	7414-670	9914-690		77 14-/UN		9914-70C		9914-700	V12-9166		811-7166	011-11-00	77 2 - 47 66	014-7166	7914-72A	9914-728	99.4-72C			AC/		9914-730			11-1166	111-3166		214-240	9914-740	0011 751	VC/-6166			9914-750	¥61-+166	862-9166	
1965 de ce	1-15	1-16	1-16	1-16	1-16	9-1	91-1 9	91-1	1-1	1-1	:	-17		1-17		1-17	1-17		1-11			1-20	1-20	1-20	1-20		07-1	02-1	1-20	1-21		1	12-1	1-21		1-21	1-21		1-22	12-1	:	1-23	1-23	[-2]	

R.E. - memo so explosion at the judicated temperature.

TABLE 10 (Cont'd) PORTE LOUTIGE THE

.

2

.

1.13

1961 date	Teet No.	Meoprenn wt. mg.	Speciaen	Specimen Wt. M.	Mysicul comfiguration	lanition temp. *C	Ignition pressure poig.	Specimen sist width x lengt	the Lowerka
1-23	9914-79C	56.0	Hickel Monel	179 189	4 1	178 280	7560	8 20 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Complete combustion. Partial combustion 18 - 10-000
					•			-	left.
1-24	99 14-BOA	1.11	Nichal	61	•	91	9527	9 × 20	Pertial combustion, 14 mm length
1-24	808-4166	41.6	Michel	113	U	178	84.50	5 × 20	Michel did <u>Bot</u> ignite. Geoprene
						,	•		completely wrapped in metal)
1-24	99 14- 80 C	42.3	Hickel	1/1	•	Macardan M	et eperating.	× 8	Michel partly ignited. 24 mm left. (Only part of montene wrapped in
1-27	009-7166	40.9	Hicks1	42	U	247	8375	5 × 10	Michal 1/2 melted, some oxidation.
									750 pei blow down when pressure to bish.
1-27	9914-81A	47.7	Michel	\$	U	4/1	6410	5 × 10	Mickel 1/2 melted, some oxidation.
1-27	E18-9166	19.2	Alumians	12.1	U	111	7200	5 # 10	Complete combustion. oxide fused.
1-27	9914-BIC	14.1	Alumitan	8.3	U	174	7850	5 x 20	Aluminum just started to melt.
1-27	0014-8180	16.4		011	U	2	7400	91 - 2	Little oxidation. Combine combine for
1-28	V28-1166	10.9	Stalalase Steel Tree 304	2.91	م د د	at stemmed at 2	226 Presence to high	5 × 20	Mentere and specimen intact.
									Resprese charred.
1-28	9914-828	10.8	Lac one 1 I-750	1/1	•	52	2103	5 × 8	Complete combustion, magnetic oxide.
1-28	9914-82C	7.4	Incomel X-750	3	•	276	7920	5 H 20	Mary oxidation and seall corner
		•			I				missing at bottom but did not ignit
1-26		13.0	Stainless Steel Type JOA		•	5	1440	況 × ら	Complete combustion.
1-28	M-16	10.6	Incomel 600	551	-	61	6905	2 = 2	Helting and nome oxidation at botto atinto
				:					
67-1 67-1			Lac own L Z-750			33	010/		Campiala compution.
				3:	. .				Campiers combustion angustic office.
			THC 0001 7-/30	-/1	•	3			SISTON TO BUIL FOR DAMY UNIONLING at bottom.
1-29	114-11 66	11.7	Ter	150	•	a l	CANCE OF COMPANY	9 - F	Started to milt and axidian at
i				5	•		2		bottom.
1-29	898-9166	9.0	Incenel I-750	21	•	202	260	5 × 20	Complete contration.
%-1 2	9914-94C	13.2	lacomel 600	162	•	961	0/6/	8 = 5	Complete combustion.
% -1	99-114	10.3	Copper	9 1	. 🖿	11	322	5 H 5	Almest complete combustion. 5 mm
			:						left. Burface exidation.
1-1	2014-04A	8.7	Lacess1, X-750	¥	•	<u>1</u>	2000	5 × 8	Camplete combustion.
16-1	0914-9166	8.2	Capper		•	2	6 11 6	5 H 5	Partial combustion. 22 m left -
									serface emidation. Black and red compted in size
16-1	3914-AAC	12.5	[arms] 400	144	•	-		8	betten 2 ar 3 m mitad out of one
					•	ł	•		side with purface ouidation only
									at bottom.
2-3	099-1166	12.9	laces 600	3	•	9	956	2 × 8	Bettes two or three an multed with
									DARY PURIACE ALLARIAN ON IN LUC

i

f

こうしょう ちょうしょう かんかん かんかん かんかい いたい

TABLE 10 (Cont'd)

.

1964 dete	Test No.	Keopreme vt. mg.	3 be c (H a	Bpectmen Vi. M.	Physical configuration	Ignítion temp. °C	Ignition pressure peig.	Specimen sine vidth x length	Remithe
2-3	¥06-¥166	1.2	Stainless Steel Type 301	147	•	£0£	8220	о; н ; с	No ignition. Only slight discoloration of upper part. Mary oxidation inside at
2-4 2-3	9914-900 9914-900	9.5 11.8	Stainless Steel Type JOI Yallow brass	161	~~	186 186	8090 7325	8 8 8 8 8 9	octoon. complete combustion. Dotton 7 or 8 mm melted with baavy oxidation. Naavy black oxidation over entire length of
3-4	9914-900	13.2	Tellow brass	3	•	180	0567	5 × 30	specimen. Melted bottom 10 mm into ball with heavy oridation. Black oridation over entire length
2-4 2-18	9914-92A 9914-92B	8.0 8.8	Stainless Steel Type 301 Stainless Steel Type 17-7PM	157 168	* *	190 320	7860 8700	5 # 30 5 # 30	of speciaern. Complete combustion. Complete combustion. Bottom of
2-16	9914-92C	15.2	Yellow brass	160	•	185	7700	5 x 30	test tube melted. Bottom Bum completely combustad- Beary oxidation over entire
2-18 2-16	9914-925 9914-93A	7.1 16.4	Stainless Steel Type 301 Amodised Siuminum (40.1 mil coat)	រៀ ស		106	700	9 ¥ 5	tength of spectment. Complete combustion. Bottom Di test tube melted.
2-16	86-4166	11.0	Anodized sluminum (Q.1 mil cost)	17	•	185	7450	5 x 30	test tube melted. Complete combustion. Side of
2-18 2-18	9914-930 9914-93D	8.2 9.8	Anodised alumainum (-CD.1 mil cost) Anodised alumainum (-CD.1 mil tost)	8 2		185 185	0057 0062	с х 8	test tupe meitee No meiting or significant Mo meiting or significant
2-18 2-18 2-18	9914-948 9914-948 9914-946	9.0 14.7 13.2	Stainless Steel Type J16 Silver Mickel	171 229 168		324 376 361	8100 8100 8600	888 888 888	oxidation. Complete combustion. Bottom 6 mm melted. 2 mm melted out of each of
2-19	076-7166	tt	Gold	372	.	183	7400	5 × 30	louer corners. Bottom 3 or 4 m melted.
2-19	9914-958 9914-958	12.6	Lead Anodised 25 mil aluminum (0.2mil	50 19	~ ~	1 86	7200	5 H 30 5 H 20	Melted into ball. Very little oxidation. No ignition.
2-19 2-19 2-19 2-19	9914-95C 9914-95D 9914-96A 9914-96C	176 M atain 176 M atain 176 M atain 176 M atain 1 X 4 X 4	lies steel Type 304 sealed in 275 mg lies steel Type 304 sealed in 275 mg lies steel Type 304 sealed in 218 mg lies steel Type 304 sealed in 218 mg i Kal- T conted on 4 \times 4 \times 4 m aluminu	of Lal-7 of Lal-7 of Lal-7 of Taflon FF	::::	380 415 419 419 419	8400 7500 8300 8000	888 *** ***	Complete combustion. Complete combustion. Complete combustion. Aluminum intect. No Signifi-
2-25 2-25	8914-960 8914-972	65 6.11	Gold Amodized aluminum (0.3 mil cost)	3 55		180	7350 0100	2 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 2 3	Tant oxidetton, Mal-r good. Malted into ball. Lower 2 or 3 am melted. No
2-25 2-27 2-28 2-28 2-28 2-28	9914-978 9914-970 9914-970 9914-988 9914-988	13.8 15.5 14.6 1 × 4 × 4 56.5	Abodiasd alumaiana (0.3 mil cost) Abodiasd an 1 x 4 x 4 mm alumia Michal	1 238:85 28:2		911110 91110 9110 9110 9110 9110 9110 9	8000 7700 7700 8000 7100 7100	222 222 222 222 222	atgniticent oxidation. Dotton fev am attented to mult. Complete combustion. Kal-1 signiced aluminum intect Katte specimen malted Complete combustion.

H.E. - means no explosion at the indicated temperature.

			Pressure in Simulated System		Blectrostat ac	
Point Internet <	It <th>If the set of the s</th> <th>ig Immediately On Ccoling When</th> <th>cupletely Pressurisation</th> <th>charge measured</th>	If the set of the s	ig Immediately On Ccoling When	cupletely Pressurisation	charge measured	
My Ly Ly <thly< th=""> Ly Ly Ly<</thly<>	14 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <th colsp<="" th=""><th>91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressures site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressures site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressures site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressure site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1 91/10 0.1 0.1 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1 91/10 0.100 0.1 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1 91/10 91/10 0.1 11.1.1. lutura. 91/10 <td< th=""><th>it after test after teat equal pai pai atora</th><th>ised with time of simulated by vessel system, sec.</th><th>volts</th></td<></th></th>	<th>91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressures site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressures site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressures site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressure site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1 91/10 0.1 0.1 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1 91/10 0.100 0.1 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1 91/10 91/10 0.1 11.1.1. lutura. 91/10 <td< th=""><th>it after test after teat equal pai pai atora</th><th>ised with time of simulated by vessel system, sec.</th><th>volts</th></td<></th>	91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressures site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressures site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressures site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1. x 5/1/4" 1.1. lutura. General factor binated on low pressure site. 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1 91/10 0.1 0.1 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1 91/10 0.100 0.1 11.1. lutura. 91/10 0.1 91/10 91/10 0.1 11.1.1. lutura. 91/10 <td< th=""><th>it after test after teat equal pai pai atora</th><th>ised with time of simulated by vessel system, sec.</th><th>volts</th></td<>	it after test after teat equal pai pai atora	ised with time of simulated by vessel system, sec.	volts
		<i>Sile of the second on the pressure site.</i> 31.6 0.1. <i>s j j j j j j j j j j</i>	đ	1		
		1 1100-11 8970, 1100-12 1100 900 900<	anked on low pressure side.			
		1 1		0.52	₩.D.	
		10.000 10.000		. 0.51	÷1.D.	
		1000000000000000000000000000000000000	665	0.55	₩.D.	
		1000 1000 <t< td=""><td>875</td><td> 0,52</td><td>·H.D.</td></t<>	875	0,52	·H.D.	
		15. 11000-1 000	975	0.5	*N.D.	
		1.1 11000-17 6600 000	BSO	. 0.5	*H.D.	
		1000 1000 <t< td=""><td>750</td><td>. 0.5</td><td>*N.D.</td></t<>	750	. 0.5	*N.D.	
1000000000000000000000000000000000000		1000 1000 <t< td=""><td>1700</td><td> 0.3</td><td>< -0.05</td></t<>	1700	0.3	< -0.05	
		10 1000	1500		< -0.05	
		1000 1000 <t< td=""><td>2400</td><td>. 0.30</td><td>< -0.05</td></t<>	2400	. 0.30	< -0.05	
		1000-10 1000	2100 1800	. 0.30	< -0.05	
		1: 1100-11 5100 3000 5200 3230 1: 1100-11 5000 <td< td=""><td>2950</td><td>. 0.30</td><td>< -0.05</td></td<>	2950	. 0.30	< -0.05	
		1:0:0:10 1:0:0:0	3650 3250	0.26	< -0.05	
		1000 1000 <t< td=""><td> 0010 0090</td><td> 0.28</td><td>-0.05</td></t<>	0010 0090	0.28	-0.05	
		1000-13 700 500 500 600 50	4200 3900	0.26	-0.25	
		1000-13 1000-13 <t< td=""><td>5050 4200</td><td> 0.24</td><td>:</td></t<>	5050 4200	0.24	:	
		1000-16 500 600 500 600 500 600 500 600 500 600 500 600 500 600 500	2600 4800	0.24	-0.20	
		3-5 11000-17 5300 3300 540 3300 500 300 500 <th< td=""><td>4600 3850</td><td> 0.26</td><td>-0.15</td></th<>	4600 3850	0.26	-0.15	
1: 1000-13 0.00 1000 1000 0.00 <	1: 1000-18 500 300 $1-0$ 240 $1-0$ 0.30	1:0:0:0:18 4:00 1:00 2:00	3850 3300	0.28	-0.14	
Accurate value and value installed to blaw dam law pressure side of Gamial Reputator and value installed to blaw dam law pressure side of Gamial Reputator and value installed to blaw dam law pressure side of Gamial Reputator and value installed to blaw dam law pressure side of Gamial Reputator and value installed to blaw dam law pressure side of Gamial Reputator and value installed to blaw dam law pressure side of Gamial Reputator and value installed to blaw dam law pressure side of Gamial Reputator and value installed to blaw dam law pressure side of Gamial Reputator and value installed to blaw dam law pressure side of Gamial Reputator and value installed of 0.023 0.023 0.024 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 0.024 0.011 <td>Tenette volue of 60 cc adda to large present and value large later later large later later later large later large later later</td> <td>Acoust of 80 cc added to low pressure aids of Genical Regulator and valve installed to blow deen low index into 0.000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 10</td> <td>3300 2850</td> <td></td> <td>-0.10</td>	Tenette volue of 60 cc adda to large present and value large later later large later later later large later large later	Acoust of 80 cc added to low pressure aids of Genical Regulator and valve installed to blow deen low index into 0.000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 10	3300 2850		-0.10	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	10-10 10-0-19 100 2	e of Gemind Regulator and valve installed to	blow down low pressure side.		
	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1-6 1100-21 500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4400 5500 4401 5730 4401 <t< td=""><td>2700 2300</td><td> 0.20</td><td>-0.10</td></t<>	2700 2300	0.20	-0.10	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		1.6 110.0-21 9000 5730 6400 5730	3500	0.26	-0.10	
1-6 11040-22 10700 600 7300 600		3-6 110-0-22 10700 6400 7300 6400 7300 6400 7300 6400 7300	5750	0.24	-0.14	
J-6 11040-23 11000 500 7330 0.21 0.21 0.11 J incluse of 1/4" 0.b. x 0.083" I.b. tubing substituted for $9/14"$ 0.b. x $3/16"$ I.b. tubing. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 J incluse of 1/4" 0.b. x 0.083" I.b. tubing substituted for $9/14"$ 0.b. x $3/16"$ I.b. tubing. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 J incluse of 1/4" 0.b. x 0.083" 0 0000 5000 5000 5000 0.00 0.14 <.0.03	3-6 $11060-23$ $11060-23$ 500 530 6500 $100-12$ 0.011 0.011 0.011 $3-6$ $1060-23$ 3200 6000 6000 6000 0.014 $6-0.03$ $6-0.03$ $3-6$ $11060-23$ 3000 6000 5700 $$ 3100 $$ 3000 $$ 3100 $$ 0.13 0.13 $3-6$ $11060-24$ 3000 $$ 3100 $$ 3100 $$ 0.13 0.13 $3-6$ $11060-24$ 3000 $$	1-6 11040-23 11000 6500 7330 6500 7330 30 inches of 1/4" 0.B. x 0.083" 1.B. tubing 0.083" 1.B. 3-6 11040-24 9.200 6.200 6.200 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 1-6 11040-24 9.200 6.200 6.200 5.00	0099	0.22	-0.15	
J0 inches of 1/4" 0.D. x 0.083" I.D. tubing substituted for 9/16" 0.D. x 5/16" I.B. tubing. J16 11040-24 9200 6200 6700 7000 </td <td>30 factors of $1/4^{\circ}$ 0.0.1, x 0.003" I.D. (ubid a obstituted for $9/16^{\circ}$ 0.D. x 5/16" I.B. (ubid.3.60.0005300630057000.143.60.000500057000.1660003.60.000500050000.160.163.611060-25360057000.1660003.60.002555310025553.611060-2711000255531003.711060-2811060-270.160.263.911060-281106000.0000.263.911060-281106000.260.203.911060-281106000.260.203.911060-281106000.220.223.911060-281106000.220.223.911060-281106000.220.223.911060-281106000.220.223.911060-291106000.220.223.911060-21120000.0000.223.911060-21120000.220.223.911060-21120000.220.013.911060-2110000.100.223.911060-2110000.100.223.911060-2110000.100.103.911060-2110000.100.123.911060-2110000.100.123.911060-211</td> <td>J0 laches of 1/4" 0.0, x 0.083" I.D. tubing substituted for 9/16" 0.0, x 5/16" I.D. tubing. J-6 11040-24 9200 6400 5700 7700<!--</td--><td>6500</td><td>0.21</td><td>-0.13</td></td>	30 factors of $1/4^{\circ}$ 0.0.1, x 0.003" I.D. (ubid a obstituted for $9/16^{\circ}$ 0.D. x 5/16" I.B. (ubid.3.60.0005300630057000.143.60.000500057000.1660003.60.000500050000.160.163.611060-25360057000.1660003.60.002555310025553.611060-2711000255531003.711060-2811060-270.160.263.911060-281106000.0000.263.911060-281106000.260.203.911060-281106000.260.203.911060-281106000.220.223.911060-281106000.220.223.911060-281106000.220.223.911060-281106000.220.223.911060-291106000.220.223.911060-21120000.0000.223.911060-21120000.220.223.911060-21120000.220.013.911060-2110000.100.223.911060-2110000.100.223.911060-2110000.100.103.911060-2110000.100.123.911060-2110000.100.123.911060-211	J0 laches of 1/4" 0.0, x 0.083" I.D. tubing substituted for 9/16" 0.0, x 5/16" I.D. tubing. J-6 11040-24 9200 6400 5700 7700 </td <td>6500</td> <td>0.21</td> <td>-0.13</td>	6500	0.21	-0.13	
1.6 11040-24 9200 6500 5700 6400 57100 57100	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1-6 11040-24 9200 6200 6400 7700 6400 1-6 11040-25 6800 5000 6400 5000 5000 1-6 11040-25 6800 5000 6400 5000 5000 1-6 11040-26 3600 5000 6400 5000 5000 1-6 11040-27 12000 7000 5000 7000 5000 7000	stad for 9/16" 0.8. = 5/16"-1.8. tubing.			
1-10 1-10 <th< td=""><td>1-6 11060-25 600 5000 0.16 < -0.05</td> 1-6 11060-25 5000 3100 2555 5000 0.16 < < -0.05</th<>	1-6 11060-25 600 5000 0.16 < -0.05	1-6 11040-25 6800 5000 4400 5000 4400 5000 4400 5000 4400 5000 4400 5000 4400 5000 4400 5000 4400 5000	5700	0.14	< -0.05	
1.6 1100-26 3800 3100 2500 3100 <-0.05 Reinstalled 9/16" 0.B. x 5/16" 1.B. tub/ag. 100 2500 7000 2500 0.20 <-0.05	1-6 1100-2.5 3100 2.55 3100 0.20 <-0.05	1-6 11000-26 3800 3100 2655 3100 Reinstalled 9/16* 0.B. x 5/16* 1.B. tub'ag. 3100 2655 3100 1-9 11040-27 12000 7000 6000 7000 8000 1-9 11040-28 12000 7000 6000 7000 8000 1-9 11040-28 12000 7000 8000 7000 8000 1-9 11040-29 12000 7000 8000 7000 8000 1-9 11040-29 12000 7100 8000 7000 8000 11040-31 12100 7100 7100 8100 7250 6100 8100 11040-31 11040-31 12100 7100 8100 1040-31 12000 7250 6100 8100 <tr tbody=""> 11040-31</tr>	20 ···· 20	0.16	< -0.05	
Actinital d /16" 0.B. x 5/16" I.B. tub*Ag. -0.06 3-9 11040-27 12000 7000 -0.06 9 11040-28 12000 7000 -0.06 9 11040-28 12000 7000 -0.06 9 11040-28 12000 7000 -0.06 9 11040-28 12000 7000 -0.01 9 11040-28 12000 7000 -0.01 9 11040-28 12000 7000 -0.01 1040-30 12000 7100 -1.0 0.22 -0.01 11040-31 12100 7100 -1.0 0.22 -0.01 11040-31 12100 7100 -1.0 0.22 -0.01 9 11040-31 12100 7100 -1.0 0.22 -0.01 11040-31 12100 7100 -1.0 0.22 -0.01 -0.01 9 11040-31 12100 7100 -1.0 0.23 -0.01	Acinetaliad 9/16" 0.D. x 5/16" I.D. tub'ng. -0.06 3-9 110-0-27 12000 7000 -0.06 3-9 110-0-28 12000 7000 -0.06 3-9 110-0-28 12000 7000 -0.06 3-9 110-0-28 12000 7000 -0.05 3-9 110-0-28 12000 7000 -0.05 3-9 110-0-28 12000 7000 -0.01 3-9 110-0-28 12000 7000 -0.02 3-9 110-0-31 12000 7000 -0.02 3-9 110-0-31 12000 7000 -0.03 3-9 110-0-31 12000 7100 -0.05 3-9 110-0-31 12000 7250 0.23 3-9 110-0-31 12000 7250 0.23 3-9 110-0-32 10500 6300 7350 0.23 3-9 110-0-32 10500 6300 7200 -0.05 3-9 110-0-32 10500 6300 7200 -0.05 <td< td=""><td>Reinstalled 9/16" 0.B. x 5/16" I.B. tub'Ag. </td><td>2555 31</td><td>8.0</td><td>< -0.05</td></td<>	Reinstalled 9/16" 0.B. x 5/16" I.B. tub'Ag.	2555 31	8.0	< -0.05	
3-9 11040-27 12000 7000 5000 7000 5000 0.22 -0.06 3-9 11040-28 12000 7000 5000 7000 5000 0.22 -0.06 3-9 11040-28 12000 7000 5000 7000 5000 0.22 -0.06 3-9 11040-29 12000 7000 5000 7000 0.22 -0.01 3-9 11040-29 12000 7000 5000 7000 0.22 -0.01 3-9 11040-20 12000 7000 7000 7000 0.22 -0.01 3-9 11040-30 12000 7100 7100 7100 0.23 -0.01 3-9 11040-31 12100 7100 7100 7100 0.23 -0.01 3-9 11040-32 12100 7100 7100 0.23 -0.09 -0.09 3-9 11040-32 12100 7100 7100 0.23 -0.09 -0.09 3-9 11040-31 12100 7100 1.10 0.23	3-9 11040-27 12000 7000 500 7000 500 7000 500 0.22 -0.06 3-9 11040-28 12000 7000 5000 7000 5000 0.22 -0.06 3-9 11040-28 12000 7000 5000 7000 5000 0.22 -0.06 3-9 11040-29 12000 7000 5000 7000 0.22 -0.01 3-9 11040-30 12000 7000 5000 7000 0.22 -0.01 3-9 11040-31 12100 7100 5100 5100 0.22 -0.01 3-9 11040-31 12100 7100 5100 0.22 -0.01 3-9 11040-31 12100 7100 5100 0.23 -0.09 3-9 11040-31 12100 7100 5100 0.23 -0.09 3-9 11040-31 12100 7200 0.23 0.010 3-9 11040-32 12000 5100 0.23 -0.09 3-9 11040-31	1-9 11040-27 12000 7000 500 1-9 11040-28 12000 7000 5000 1-9 11040-28 12000 7000 5000 1-9 11040-29 12000 7000 5000 1-9 11040-21 12000 7000 5000 1-9 11040-21 12000 7000 5000 1-9 11040-31 12100 7100 5000 1-9 11040-31 12100 7100 5100 1-9 11040-31 12100 7100 5100 1-9 11040-31 12100 7100 5100 1-9 11040-31 12100 7100 5100				
	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	3-9 11046-28 12000 7000 9000 7000 9000 3-9 11046-28 12000 7000 8000 7000 8000 3-9 11046-30 12000 7000 8000 7000 8000 3-9 11046-30 12000 7000 8000 7000 8000 3-9 11046-30 12100 7100 8000 7100 8000 3-9 11046-30 12100 7100 8000 7100 8100 3-9 11046-31 12100 7100 8100 7100 8100 3-9 11046-32 10500 6300 7250 6130 7250 8130	3000	0.22	-0.06	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	J-9 11040-28 12000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000			0.04	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	-7 110-0-29 12000 7000 9000 7000 9000 -0.11 19 110-0-31 12000 7000 1000 7100 -0.09 19 110-0-31 12100 7250 61.0 -0.09 19 110-0-31 10500 6300 7250 61.0	3-9 11040-29 12000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7100 8100 7100 8100 7250 81.0 72.0 72.0 72.0			60.0-	
3-9 11040-30 12000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 3-9 11040-31 12100 7100 8100 0.22 -0.09 3-9 11040-32 10500 6300 7250 6170 7250 801 -0.09		3-9 11040-30 12000 7000 8000 7000 8000 7000 8100 7100			-0-11	
3-9 11040-31 12100 8100 7100 8100 7100 9100 9100 9100 9100 9100 91000 91000 91000 91000 91000 91000 910000 910000 910000 910000 910000 910000 9100000 9100000 9100000 9100000 9100000 91000000 91000000 91000000 91000000 910000000 910000000 91000000000000000000000000000000000000	3-9 110-0-31 12100 7100 8100 7250 6130 7250 86130 7250 80 7250 80				60.0-	
					60 O	
		≐M.D Mone detected				

TABLE 11 PRESSURIZATION OF SDURATED SYNTH WITH OFFICE

-78-

							TATA VIT OF THE		
Bete 1964	Test Mo.	Treawre Before Test psi	in frorene Yese Lemediately after test psi	el On Marming after test pei	freence lendlately sfter test ps1	is Similated By On Cooling after test pai	liten Then Completely equalized with storage vasel	Initial Presertion time of simulated System, sec.	Electrostatic charge measurad volta
							pei		
01-F	11040-33	12000	7000	BIDCO	, mun		~~~~		
01-E	11040-34	12000	2000	NOO				0.22	-0.14
3-10	11040-35	12200	7100			*	2000	0.22	-0.16
01-0	11040-36	12000				;		0.22	-0.12
3-10	11040-37	1 2000			000/			0.22	0.12
			~		2000	•		0.22	-0.12
	1/16" Dia. space of r	. incomel shielde eceiver.	id iron-constant	an thermocouple	substituted for ni	ickel probe. T	hermocouple extended ap	proximately two inches into gas	Increase in
3-10	11040-38	00601							Immerature, "C
3-10	11040-39	0006	2609		6200 5600			0.23	liot recorded
	1/16" Dia.	unshielded iron	-constanten the	rmocouple substi	tuted for incomel	ahielded there	be num le		
3-10	11040-40								
2		0018	5200	***	5200	8 9 1		0.24	5 00
-									
•									

TABLE 11 (Cunt'd)

-79-

•

TABLE 12

ADIABATIC COMPRESSION TESTS

	R ema rks			Sample ignited	Sample ignited	Samle fanted	Samla fentral	Dan Tingt at dama
ſ	Fressurization time of 51" length of 5/16" I.D. tubing	and sample, sec		CO.O	0.05	0.05	0.05	
Untabe	of sample in grams		0.217		0.223	0.240	0.161	
Sample	-		Viton A (Virgin)	V to the the second	ATTON V (ATLBIU)	Kel-F 81	Teflon (Virgin)	
torage Vessel	Immediately after test psi		0069	6700		6500	6300	
Pressure in S	Before test psi		7200	7100		000/	6900	
Date	1904		3-10	3-10	3-10		3-10	

-80-

T,

Ś

N. 19. 19. 14

Contraction of the second se

F

UNCLASSIFIED								
Security Classification								
DOCUMENT CO	NTROL DATA - R&D							
(Security classification of title, body of abstract and indexi	ng annotation must be ente	red when t	he overall report is classified)					
Union Carbide Corporation Linde Divisi	00	4 <u>8</u> 000 TTN	TOT ACCEPTED					
Cryogenic Development Laboratory	.011	DI GROUR	CLASSIFIED					
Tonawanda, New York	•		N/A					
3 REPORT TITLE	<u>-</u>							
COMPATIBILITY OF MATERIALS WIT	H 7500 PSI OXYG	EN						
4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)								
Final report, June 190	<u> 63 - June 1964</u>							
G. I. Nih	art							
C. P. Sm	ith							
S. REPORT DATE	78. TOTAL NO OF PAR	GES	75. NO. OF REFS					
October 1964	89		17					
BE CONTRACT OR GRANT NO. SE ORIGINATORIS REPORT NUMBER(S)								
AF 33(657)-11686								
b. PROJECT NO								
6373								
- 185K NO.	this report)	D(3) (Any	offier numbers that may be assigned					
03/3UZ d	AMRL-T	DR-64-	-76					
10. A VAIL ABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES								
Qualified requesters may obtain cories o	of this report from	n DDC	•					
Available, for sale to the public, from th	e Office of Tech	nical S	Services,					
U.S. Department of Commerce, Washing	ton, D. C. 2023	<u>su.</u>						
11- SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12 SPONSORING MILIT	ARY ACTI	VITY					
	Aerospace Med	ical Re	search Laboratories					
	Wright-Patterso	on Air I	Force Base, Ohio					
13 ABSTRACT A research program was conducted to develop ignition data on thread lubri-								
Cants, thread sealants, fluorocarbon plastics, and metals. Spontaneous ignition								
temperatures were determined in both 20	inces, and meta	not ov	vices for all the above					
temperatures were determined in both 2000 psi and 7500 psi oxygen for all the above								
wore found to be acceptially the same in								
were found to be essentially the same in 7500 psi oxygen and in 2000 psi oxygen.								
Only three of the tested lubricants are recommended for possible use in 7500 psi								
systems. None of the thread sealants are recommended. Glass-filled polytetra-								
fluoroethylene is usable only if tightly confined. The relative ease of ignition of metals and allows was determined by promoted ignition methods in courses at 7500 pci								
metals and alloys was determined by promoted ignition methods in oxygen at 7500 psi.								
Inconel alloy 600, brass, Monel alloy 400, and nickel were found to have the highest								
resistance to ignition and compusiton ar	nong the common	alloys	s and metals. Of the					
materials tested, stainless steel and all	uminum are the l	east sa	tisiactory for use at					
oxygen pressures of 7500 psi. A test sy	stem was constr	uctea	to evaluate the nazards					
in rapidly charging a 65 cubic inch nick	el-lined vessel v	vith hi	gn pressure oxygen.					
A series of rapid charging tests up to as	nign as 8000 ps	1 proce	eaea without incident.					
Liectrostatic charges measured during th	ie charging were	neglig	lDIC.					

4.11

- Alternation

.

UNCLASSIFIED Security Classification

14.		LIN	IK A	LINK B		LIN	IK C
L		ROLE	WT.	ROLE	WT	ROLE	۳۳
Cry Igr Ox Lut	yogenics (Research Fields) hition ygen pricants	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT	ROLE	W T
·				<i>2</i>		ŧ	

INSTRUCTIONS

1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of Defense activity or other organization (corporate author) issuing the report.

2a. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the overall security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Restricted Data" is included. Marking is to be in accordance with appropriate security regulations.

2b. GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DoD Directive 5200.10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as authorized.

3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all capital letters. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classification, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the title.

4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered.

5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter last name, first name, middle initial. If military, show rank and branch of service. The name of the principal withor is an absolute minimum requirement.

6. REPORT DATE: Enter the date of the report as day, month, year; or month, year. If more than one date appears, on the report, use date of publication.

7a. TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES: The total page count should follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the number of pages containing information.

7b. NUMBER OF REFERENCES. Enter the total number of references cited in the report.

8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which the report was written.

8b, 8c, & 8d. PROJECT NUMBER: Enter the appropriate military department identification, such as project number, subproject number, system numbers, task number, etc.

9a. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the official report number by which the document will be identified and controlled by the originating activity. This number must be unique to this report.

9b. OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been assigned any other report numbers (either by the originator or by the sponsor), also enter this number(s).

10. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any limitations on further dissemination of the report, other than those imposed by security classification, using standard statements such as:

- (1) "Qualified requesters may obtain copies of this report from DDC."
- (2) "Foreign announcement and dissemination of this report by DDC is not authorized."
- (3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DDC users shall request through
- (4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified uners shall request through
- (5) "All distribution of this report is controlled. Qualified DDC users shall request through

If the report has been furnished to the Office of Technical Services, Department of Commerce, for sale to the public, indicate this fact and enter the price, if known.

11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES: Use for additional explanatory notes.

12. SPONSORING MILITARY ACTIVITY: Enter the name of the departmental project office or laboratory sponsoring (paying for) the research and development. Include address.

13. ABSTRACT: Enter an abstract giving a brief and factual summary of the document indicative of the report, even though it may also appear elsewhere in the body of the technical report. If additional space is required, a continuation sheet shall be attached.

It is highly desirable that the abstract of classified reports be unclassified. Each paragraph of the abstract shall end with an indication of the military security classification of the information in the paragraph, represented as (TS), (S), (C), or (U)

There is no limitation on the length of the abstract. However, the suggested length is from 150 to 225 words.

14. KEY WORDS: Key words are technically meaningful terms or short phrases that characterize a report and may be used as index entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be selected so that no security classification is required. Identifiers, such as equipment model designation, trade name, military project code name, geographic location, may be used as key words but will be followed by an indication of technical context. The assignment of links, rules, and weights is optional.